
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

McHenry Public Library District 

Board of Library Trustees Regular Meeting 

Public Hearing on 

The Combined Annual Budget and Appropriation 

Ordinance 

 

Tuesday, September 20, 2016    

7:00 p.m. 

1st Floor Conference Room 

 

Agenda 
 

 

 I. CALL TO ORDER – Kathy Beaderstadt, President 

 

 

II. ROLL CALL – Monica Leccese, Secretary 

 

 

III. PUBLIC FORUM - For purposes of discussing the FY2016-2017 Tentative 

Annual Budget and Appropriation Ordinance (TBAO) 

 

 

IV.      ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

McHenry Public Library District 
809 North Front Street 

McHenry, Illinois 60050 
Phone:  815.385.0036 

www.mchenrylibrary.org 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

McHenry Public Library District 

Board of Library Trustees Regular Meeting 

 

Tuesday, September 20, 2016 

1st Floor Conference Room (immediately following public 

hearing) 

 

 

Agenda 
 

 

I.   CALL TO ORDER – Kathy Beaderstadt, President 

 

 

II.   ROLL CALL – Monica Leccese, Secretary 

 

 

III.      PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

 

IV.      CORRECTIONS OR ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

 

 

V.      PUBLIC COMMENT AND RECOGNITION OF VISISTORS 

 

 

VI.      CONSENT AGENDA FOR THIS MEETING (Action) 

SECRETARY'S REPORT – Monica Leccese, Secretary 

Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, August 23, 2016 

 

TREASURER'S REPORT – Bradley Schubert, Treasurer 

Monthly Financial Statements and Interim Check Report through  

August 31, 2016 and Bill Reports for Aug/Sept 2016 

Additional Bills (Distributed night of meeting) 

Petty Cash and Credit Card Reports 

 



 

 

 

 

 

VII. COMMUNICATIONS 
 D. Gaudio request for reimbursement of tuition 

 D. Gaudio upcoming courses to be taken 

 

 

VIII. LIBRARIAN'S REPORT 

 

 

IX. OLD BUSINESS 
1.  Updates on Petersen Farm garden; Chautauqua, etc. 

 

 

 

X. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
To discuss the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or 

dismissal of specific employees of the public body in compliance with the Open Meetings 

Act 5 ILCS 120/2 section 2(c)(1) and review and release of the February 16, 2016 and March 

15, 2016 Executive Session Minutes. 

 

 

XI. NEW BUSINESS 
1.   Process started to review Executive Director’s performance/evaluation (Eval due   

end of November 2016) 

2.   Discussion/Approval of BAO, Ordinance 2016/2017-3 (Board Action)  

3.  Approval and release of the February 16, 2016 and March 15, 2016 Executive 

Session Minutes.  (Action) 

 

 

XII. ANY AND ALL OTHER BUSINESS WHICH MAY PROPERLY 

COME BEFORE THE BOARD 

 

 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

 

*Any person with a physical disability may contact the MPLD (815-385-0036) within 4 

hours of any meeting date to request special access to any board meeting.  The MPLD will 

make all board meetings accessible to people with physical disabilities under the current 

ADA requirements. 



 

 

 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 

COUNTY OF McHENRY ) 

 

THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

OF THE McHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 

McHENRY COUNTY, McHENRY, ILLINOIS 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

 

 PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Tentative Budget and Appropriation 

Ordinance for the McHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT, McHENRY COUNTY, 

McHENRY, ILLINOIS, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2016, and ending June 30, 2017, is 

on file and conveniently available for public inspection at the McHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY 

DISTRICT, 809 North Front Street, McHenry, Illinois and with the Secretary of the District, 

Monica Leccese, and the Library's Executive Director, James C. Scholtz, at 809 North Front 

Street, McHenry, Illinois, and will so remain on file until the final action thereon by the Board of 

Library Trustees. 

 

 FURTHER NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing on said Budget and 

Appropriation Ordinance will be held at 7:00 p.m., Tuesday, September 20, 2016 at the 

McHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT BUILDING, 809 North Front Street, McHenry, 

Illinois, and that final action will be taken thereon by the Board of Library Trustees to be held 

immediately after said hearing at the time and place aforesaid. 

 

 Published by direction of the Board of Library Trustees of the McHENRY PUBLIC 

LIBRARY DISTRICT, McHENRY COUNTY, McHENRY, ILLINOIS. 

 

 DATED this 19th day of July, 2016 

 

THE McHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT, 

McHENRY COUNTY, McHENRY, ILLINOIS 

 

  BY:___________________________________ 

   Monica Leccese, Secretary 

   Board of Library Trustees 

   McHenry Public Library District 

 

Publish: before August 16, 2016 (30 days before hearing, Sept. 20, 2016)  



 

 

 

 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 

COUNTY OF McHENRY ) 

 

THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

OF THE McHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 

McHENRY, ILLINOIS 

 

ORDINANCE No. 2016/2017 - 2 

 

 

TENTATIVE COMBINED ANNUAL BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE 

FOR THE McHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2016 

AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2017 

 

 WHEREAS, the Illinois Municipal Budget Law, Illinois Revised Statutes, Chapter 85, 

Section 801, et. seq., as amended, requires all Illinois Municipal Corporations as broadly defined 

therein, to adopt a combined Annual Budget and Appropriation Ordinance, specifying the objects 

and purposes of expenditures; and the Illinois Public Library District Act, 75 ILCS 16/30-85, 

provides procedures for the passage of a Budget and Appropriation Ordinance and a Tax Levy 

Ordinance; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the above and other appropriate statutes, a Budget and 

Appropriation Ordinance has been prepared in tentative form at the designation of this Board, 

and has been made available for public inspection at least thirty (30) days prior to final action 

thereon, and a public hearing on said Budget and Appropriation Ordinance has been held prior to 

final action hereon, and notice of said hearing to be published on or before August 16, 2016, 

being more than 30 days prior to said hearing, in a newspaper published within the district. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Library Trustees 

of the McHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT, McHenry, McHenry County, Illinois, as 

follows: 

 

 Section One:  The following budget containing a statement of cash on hand at the 

beginning of the fiscal year, an estimate of all cash receipts of said Library District to be received 

during such fiscal year from all sources, the estimated expenditures contemplated for such fiscal 

year and a statement of the estimated cash on hand at the end of such fiscal year be, and the same 

is hereby adopted as the Budget for said Library District for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2016 

and ending June 30, 2017, and the same sum are hereby appropriated as necessary to defray the 

said expenses and liabilities of this Public Library District, for the objects and purposes and in 

the estimated amounts as indicated, for said fiscal year: 

 



 

 

I. GENERAL FUND 

 

A. ESTIMATED RECEIPTS:       APPROPRIATION    BUDGET 

1.  Est. Cash on hand 5/27/16               $    566,910.00    

  2.  Property tax revenues            $3,180,652.28  $ 3,180,652.28 

             3.  Corporate Replacement Taxes  $            0.00  $               0.00 

   4.  General Fund Interest   $     7,000.00  $        5,000.00   

   5.  Dividends     $        500.00  $           500.00 

   6.  Non-Resident Fees   $     1,000.00  $        1,000.00 

   7.  Fines and Fees    $   45,000.00  $      45,000.00 

   8.  Collection Agency Fees   $     1,000.00  $        1,000.00 

   9.  Photocopier Income   $   17,000.00  $      17,000.00 

 10.  Annexation Impact Fees    $     1,000.00  $        1,000.00 

 12.  Staff COBRA Payments   $   12,000.00  $      12,000.00 

 13.  Program Fees/Misc. Fees   $     4,200.00  $        4,200.00 

 14.  Meeting Room Fees   $     1,000.00  $        1,000.00 

 15.  Misc. Sales & Fees   $   25,000.00  $      25,000.00 

 16.  Lost & Damaged Materials  $     6,000.00  $        6,000.00 

17.  Over/Short    $        --  $               0.00 

  

 TOTAL GENERAL REVENUE  $3,866,262.28  $3 ,180,652.28 

 

 

 



B. APPROPRIATIONS FOR ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES 

  
1.  MATERIALS & SUPPLIES  APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 

a.  Adult Books    $     90,000.00   $    85,000.00 

b.  YPS Books     $     64,000.00   $    59,000.00 

c.  Professional Resources   $       3,000.00   $      1,500.00 

d.  Administrative Resources   $       7,000.00   $      6,400.00 

e.  Magazines/Newspapers   $     20,000.00   $    15,000.00 

f.  Adult AV Materials   $     65,000.00   $    62,000.00 

g.  YPS AV Materials    $     19,000.00   $    16,000.00 

h.  Video Games    $     20,000.00   $    15,000.00 

i.   eBook & eMagazine Services  $     60,000.00   $    55,500.00 

j.  Electronic Resources   $     90,000.00   $    80,000.00 

k.  Bank Service Charges   $          500.00   $        500.00   

l.   Library Supplies    $     15,000.00   $    10,000.00 

m. Tech. Services Supplies   $     58,000.00   $    57,200.00 

n.  Bindery Services    $          150.00   $         150.00 

o.  Adult Programs/Supplies   $     22,000.00   $    22,000.00 

p.  Circulation Supplies   $     26,000.00   $    26,000.00 

q.  Summer Reading Club   $       7,000.00   $      7,000.00 

r.  YPS Programs/Supplies   $     21,500.00   $    21,500.00 

 

 

2.  CONTRACTED SERVICES  APPROPRIATION  BUDGET  

a.  Collection Agency    $      1,500.00   $      1,500.00 

b.  Computer, Office equipment   $    60,000.00   $    59,000.00 

 & copier repairs/contracts 

c.  Vehicle Expenses    $              0.00   $             0.00  

d.  Misc. Contracted Servs.   $       5,000.00   $      2,000.00 

e. Finance/Late Fee Charges   $          500.00   $         500.00  

 

3. CATALOG & NETWORK  APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 

a.  CCS & SIRSI Services   $     80,000.00   $     80,000.00 

b. Network Expenses    $     30,000.00   $     25,000.00 

c. OCLC Services    $     12,000.00   $       8,000.00 

   



4.  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 

a.  Accounting, Payroll & Audit Services $     34,000.00   $     28,000.00 

b.  Legal Services    $       2,000.00   $       1,500.00 

c.  Automation & Misc. Consultants  $     14,000.00   $     14,000.00 

d.  In-service Honorariums   $       1,000.00   $       1,000.00 

   

 5.  PRINTING, PUBLICATIONS  

 & POSTAGE    APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 

a.  Printing     $     40,000.00   $     36,000.00 

b.  Public Notices & Ads   $       4,000.00   $       3,000.00 

c.  Postage     $     20,000.00   $     18,000.00  

d. Public Relations/Promotions  $     10,000.00   $     10,000.00  

 

6.  UTILITIES    APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 

a.  Electricity     $     30,000.00   $     25,000.00 

b.  Gas      $       8,000.00   $      5,000.00 

c.  Telephone     $       6,000.00   $      4,500.00 

d.  T-1 & Other Telecom.   $     10,000.00   $      8,000.00 

e.  Water & Sewer    $      7,000.00   $      3,500.00 

 

 7.  MISCELLANEOUS OPERATING  

 EXPENSES    APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 

a.  Janitorial Equipment, Supplies & Tools $              0.00   $             0.00 

b.  Building & Auto Insurance  $     40,000.00   $     32,000.00 

c.  Bonding & Officers’ Liability  $       7,000.00   $       5,500.00 

d.  Building & Equipment Outsource  $     55,000.00   $     54,000.00 

e.  Hospitality     $     18,000.00   $     16,000.00 

f.   Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses  $       1,500.00   $          700.00 

g.  Miscellaneous    $       4,000.00   $       4,000.00        

 



 

8.  PERSONNEL EXPENSES  APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 

a.  Salaries     $1,900,000.00   $1,810,000.00 

b.  FICA     $   160,000.00   $   145,000.00  

c.  IMRF     $   185,000.00   $   180,000.00 

d.  Health/Life Insurance   $   225,000.00   $   220,000.00 

e.  Tuition Reimbursement   $     12,000.00   $       9,000.00 

f.  Memberships & Dues   $       8,500.00   $       8,000.00 

g.  Meetings & Travel    $     15,000.00   $     14,000.00  

  

 

 9.  CAPITAL EXPENSES   APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 

a.  Building  & Equipment Supplies   $               0.00                             ---- 

b.  Library Furnishings   $       55,000.00                        $   50,000.00 

c.  Library Equipment    $       70,000.00  $    70,000.00 

d.  Small Equip. under $250   $       10,000.00  $    10,000.00 

e.  Additional Capital Projects  $     320,000.00  $  320,000.00 

  

 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENSES $   4,044,650.00            $ 4,626,450.00 

 

 

      APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 

TOTAL GEN. FUND REVENUES  $,3,320,652.28  $3,866,262.28 

TOTAL GEN. FUND EXPENSES  $ 4,044,650.00         $4,626,450.00   

                   

10. Transfer to Reserve Fund  $ --------          $  800,000.00 

 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENSES $ 4,044,650.00  $4,626,450.00 

 

 

 



 

II. GRANT and GIFT FUND 

 

 

A. ESTIMATED REVENUES  APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 

 1.    Est. Cash on Hand 5/27/2016 $   500,000.00   $   432,586.00 

 2     Per Capita Grant cash on hand $     ----   $      ---- 

 3.    Grant/Gift Fund Interest  $     25,000.00   $       2,500.00 

 4.    General Fund Gifts  $   100,000.00   $     20,000.00 

 5.    Per Capita Grant (2014/2015) $   110,000.00   $     84,893.43 

 6.    Misc. Grants   $   100,000.00   $     50,000.00 

  

 TOT. GRANT/GIFT REVENUES $   835,000.00   $   589,979.43   

 

 

B. ESTIMATED EXPENSES  APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 

 1.  Operating Fund Gifts  $   500,000.00   $   448,381.10 

 2.  FY 2016 Per Capita Grant  $     52,528.75   $     32,393.43 

 3.  Additional Fund Expenses  $              0.00   $              0.00  

 5.  Misc. Grants   $     50,000.00   $     25,000.00  

  

 

 TOT. GRANT/GIFT EXPENSES $   577,528.75     $   505,774.53  

 

 

 TOT. GRANT/GIFT REVENUES $     835,000.00  $   589,979.43 

 TOT. GRANT/GIFT EXPENSES $     577,528.75  $   505,774.53 

  Subtotal cash on hand $     257,471.25  $     84,204.90  

  Transfer to Reserve Fund $    ------      $              0.00            

  

 



 

III.  SPECIAL RESERVE FUND 

 

 

A. ESTIMATED RECEIPTS  APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 

 1.  Est. Cash on hand 5/27/16  $ 1,500,000.00                      $     767,697.00 

 2.  Developer Fees   $      50,000.00  $     40,000.00 

 3.  Transfer from Other Funds $          0.00  $   800,000.00 

 4.  Reserve Fund Interest  $      50,000.00  $       3,000.00  

 5.  Reserve Fund Gifts                        $    250,000.00  $     25,000.00 

 6.  Bond & Debt Certif. Sale             $               0.00                        $              0.00 

 7.  Misc. Income SR   $        2,000.00  $       2,000.00 

 

TOTAL REVENUES             $  1,850,000.00             $ 1,637,697.00    

 

 

B.   ESTIMATED EXPENSES  APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 

 1. Debt Service   $             0.00   $              0.00 

2. Improvements not related to 

Expansion/renovation  $    200,000.00             $   100,000.00           

3.   Expenditures Pursuant 

     To Statutory Guidelines of the  

            LIBRARY DISTRICT ACT, 

           75 ILCS 16/40-50   $     100,000.00  $     50,000.00 

 

TOTAL EXPENSES    $     300,000.00  $   150,000.00               

 

TOTAL RESERVE FUND REVENUES $  1,850,000.00            $ 1,637,697.00 

TOTAL RESERVE FUND EXPENSES $     300,000.00             $    400,000.00 

   

 

 Section Two:  There is hereby appropriated from the taxes to be levied for the 

fiscal year and other sources of revenue: 

 

  I. General Fund   $    3,866,262.28 

 II. Grant/Gift Fund  $       589,979.43 

 III. Special Reserve Fund $    1,637,697.00     

 

TOTAL     $    6,093,938.71 

 



 

 Section Three:  There is hereby appropriated from the taxes to be levied for the 

fiscal year and other sources of income the sum of: 

 

      $  6,093,938.71 

   

the same to be divided among the several corporate objects and purposes as herein above 

specified for said Library District purposes for the aforesaid fiscal year. 

 

 

 Section Four:  All unexpended balances of proceeds received annually from 

Public Library District taxes not in excess of statutory limits may be transferred to the Special 

Reserve Fund, heretofore established according to plans developed and adopted by this Library 

Board and said unexpended balances shall be accumulated in this fund for the purpose of erecting 

a new Public Library building, purchasing a site for the same, or building an addition thereto, or 

furnishing necessary equipment therefor, or acquiring electronic data storage and retrieval 

facilities. 

 

 

 Section Five:  Except as otherwise provided by law, no further appropriations 

shall be made at any time within such fiscal year, provided that this Library Board may from time 

to time make transfers between the various items in any fund not affecting the total amount 

appropriated, or appropriations in excess of those authorized by the Budget in order to meet an 

immediate and unforeseen emergency by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Trustees present and 

voting, as provided by 75 ILCS 16/30-90 et. seq., and this Library Board may amend this Budget 

and Appropriation Ordinance from time to time by the same procedure as prescribed by Statute 

for the original adoption of a Budget and Appropriation Ordinance; provided, that nothing in this 

Section shall be construed to permit transfer between Funds required by law to be kept separate.  

Any remaining balances after the close of this fiscal year up to twenty percent (20%) of the 

appropriation shall be available until August 30th for the authorization of payment of obligations 

incurred prior to the close of the fiscal year, and until September 30th, for the payment of such 

obligations, and any remaining balances shall be available for the transfer to special reserve to be 

accumulated, as provided by 75 ILCS 16/40-50. 

 

 

 Section Six:  A copy of this Ordinance in tentative form has been made available 

for public inspection at the Public Library for thirty (30) days and by publishing in a newspaper 

published within this Public Library District in substantially the following form: 



 

 Section Seven:  This Ordinance is passed pursuant to statutory authority and the 

Illinois Public Library District Act, 75 ILCS 16/30-55, et. seq, 75 ILCS 16/30-85 et. seq.; and 75 

ILCS 16/40-50 et. seq.; and the Illinois Revenue Code, 35 ILCS 205/157 et. seq., and other 

statutes hereunto appertaining. 

 

 

 Section Eight:  This Library Board hereby certifies that all applicable provisions of 

35 ILCS 215/1 as amended, ("The Illinois Truth-in-Taxation Statute") have been complied with. 

 

 

 Section Nine:  Pursuant to 35 ILCS 200/18-165 this Library Board hereby 

determines that no surplus of funds is available for any debt, obligation, liability, operation, fund 

or account for any purpose, and accordingly the abatement and reduction of provisions of the 

Personal Property Tax Replacement Fund Act are not applicable thereto. 

 

 

 Section Ten:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage, approval, and publication, according to law, and any resolutions or ordinance in conflict 

therewith are hereby repealed; and should any part of this Ordinance be adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional, such adjudication shall affect only that part of this Act specifically covered 

thereby, and shall not affect any other provisions or part of this Act, but shall be severable 

therefrom. 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 PASSED by the Board of Library Trustees of the McHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY 

DISTRICT, McHENRY COUNTY, McHENRY, ILLINOIS this 19th day of July, 2016 by a vote 

of: 

 

 

AYES: 

 

NAYS: 

 

ABSENT: 

 

PRESENT: 

 

ABSTAINING: 

 

    Approved:______________________________ 

     Kathy Beaderstadt, President 

     Board of Library Trustees 

     McHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 

     McHenry County, McHenry, Illinois 

 

 

 

 

Attest:______________________________ 

 Monica Leccese, Secretary 

 

 

 



MINUTES 

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES  

MEETING 

 

 

 

 

 

Date:  August 23, 2016 

Time:  7:00 P.M. 

Location:  Library Conference Room 

 

 

Members Present: Margaret Carey, Delphine Grala, Monica Leccese, Charles Reilly, Bradley Schubert, 

and Jill Stone 

 

Members Absent:  Kathy Beaderstadt  

 

Also Present:   James Scholtz, Executive Director 

Bill Edminster, Assistant Director 

 Kathy Milfajt, Assistant Head of Technical Services 

 

I. Call to Order: 

Vice-President Grala called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

II. Roll Call: 

Roll was called and a quorum was established.  See # 1 on attached sheet. 

 

III. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

IV. Corrections or Additions to the Agenda 

None 

 

V. Public Comment and Recognition of Visitors 

The Board recognized Kathy Milfajt, Assistant Head of Technical Services. 

 

VI. Consent Agenda for this meeting 

Secretary's Report – Monica Leccese, Secretary 

Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, July 19, 2016 

Minutes of the Committee of the Whole, August 9, 2016 

 

Treasurer's Report – Charles Reilly, Treasurer 

Monthly Financial Statements and Interim Check Report through  

July 31, 2016 and Bill Reports for July/August 2016 

Additional Bills (Distributed night of meeting) 

Petty Cash and Credit Card Reports 



 

The Board reviewed the minutes and the financial statements and bills.  Scholtz informed the Board 

that the library will no longer be participating in Illinois E-Pay due to new monthly service charges 

and difficulty in retrieving the library’s money from the banks that handle the charge transactions 

when patrons make donations or payments. 

Schubert moved and Stone seconded a motion to approve the minutes of the regular meeting for July 

19, 2016, the minutes of the Committee of the Whole for August 9, 2016, the monthly financial 

statements for the fiscal year through July 31, 2016, the Bill Reports for July/August 2016, and 

payment of the bills.  Motion passed 6-0.  See # 2 on attached sheet.   

    

VII. Communications 

 From Fountaindale Public Library – Career Online High School Graduation Invitation  

Edminster used the invitation to the Career Online High School graduation as a chance to inform 

the Board about the progress in implementing the program here at McHenry Public Library.  

Carey asked several questions to clarify how the program works. 

 

VIII. Librarian's Report 

The Board reviewed the Librarian's Report. 

 Scholtz told the Board about two programs he had helped set up.  One program is on Native 

American flute music and the other is a program series on Democracy, which also involves 

selling copies of the speaker’s books. 

 Scholtz informed the Board of his response to a patron who had asked that their third-grade child 

be included in a program for fifth to eighth graders.  

 Scholtz told the Board that Jonathan Padilla, CCS’s IT Systems Manager, had resigned to take 

another position. 

 Monthly telephone charges will be going up because the library’s provider no longer participates 

in a program that gives us a discount.  Scholtz is investigating other telephone service providers 

to determine the cost and benefits of changing. 

 Scholtz informed the Board that he had been approached by Henry Kenyon of the McHenry 

Historical Society to contribute to digitizing a historic Richmond newspaper that included 

coverage of McHenry.  He expressed concern over who might host and what might happen to the 

digitized database if the host goes out of business. 

 Scholtz told the Board that there is a new law that provides for two weeks of bereavement leave 

for the death of a child.  The library’s policy provides three days for the death of a family 

member so the library policy manual will be changed once we know the details. 

 Scholtz is investigating a community garden at the library and a Chautauqua in McHenry. 

 

Approval of the Illinois Public Library Annual Report 2015-2016   
Edminster presented the Annual Report to the Board.  He asked the Board to authorize him to 

electronically sign the report in place of the officers of the Board.  Leccese moved and Reilly 

seconded a motion to authorize Edminster to provide a digital signature and to approve Illinois 

Public Library Annual Report 2015-2016.  Motion passed 6-0.  See # 3 on attached sheet.   

 

 

 

 



IX. Executive Session 

To discuss the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance or dismissal of 

specific employees of the public body in compliance with the Open Meetings Act 5 ILCS 120/2 

section 2(c)(1) and review and release of the February 16, 2016 and March 15, 2016 executive 

session minutes. 

The Board did not go into Executive Session.  

 

X. Old Business 

 1.  Final discussion about the project to remodel the existing solar panel array and install a 

new array  

Leccese made a motion to proceed with the solar array project, hiring Magitek Energy Solutions to 

retrofit the existing 10kWh system to work with a larger installed 20kWh total system using a low 

profile rooftop array. Since the motion originated and had been passed at a Committee of the Whole 

meeting, it did not require a second.  Motion passed 6-0.  See # 4 on attached sheet. 

 2.  New information on sanitary sewer lift station 

Scholtz reported that he received a reply from McHenry Alderman Vic Santi in response to 

requests to obtain an adequate connection to the McHenry sewer system.  Scholtz met with 

Santi, but Santi will not support the library having the City put in sewer lines under Hwy. 31.  

The Board discussed options, since not having the sewer connection limits the library’s 

ability to build a new library or to sell the northern part of the property. 

3.  RFID project –discuss scheduling visits to other libraries 

Scholtz asked the Trustees to indicate days of the week during September and October when 

they would be available to visit nearby libraries that use RFID systems.  Once dates have 

been settled on, he will contact library directors to arrange visits.  Staff will visit libraries that 

are farther away. 

 

XI. New Business 

1. Discussion of the FY 2016/2017 Budget 

Scholtz reported that the budget continues to advance. He said that the uncertainty regarding 

telephone charges as reported in the Librarian’s report would need to be resolved before that budget 

line could be finalized.  A concern he has is that VOIP (Voice over Internet Protocol) phones, which 

have great benefits, could diminish our Internet bandwidth.  He will investigate phone options and 

should be able to adjust the budget by the next Board meeting. 

   

XII. Any and All Other Business Which May Properly Come Before the Board 

None 

 

XIII. Adjournment 

Carey moved and Stone seconded a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:30 p.m.  Motion passed 6-0.   

See # 5 on attached sheet. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

       

Monica Leccese, Secretary 
 



Text for Motion Sheet 

1. Roll Call 

2. Motion to approve the minutes of the regular meeting for July 19, 2016, the minutes of the Committee of 

the Whole for August 9, 2016, the monthly financial statements for the fiscal year through July 31, 

2016, the Bill Reports for July/August 2016, and payment of the bills.   

3. Motion to authorize Edminster to provide a digital signature and to approve Illinois Public Library 

Annual Report 2015-2016.   

4. Motion to proceed with the solar array project, hiring Magitek Energy Solutions to retrofit the existing 

10kWh system to work with a larger installed 20kWh total system using a low profile rooftop array.  

(No second is required since the motion was passed at the August 9, 2016 Committee of the Whole). 

5. Motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:30 p.m.  

 

 

DATE:  August 23, 2016 
Called to Order: 7:00 p.m. 

Kathy 

Beaderstadt 

Margaret 

Carey 

Delphine 

Grala 

Monica 

Leccese 

Charles 

Reilly 

Bradley 

Schubert 

Jill  

Stone 

1.  Roll call NP P P  P P P  P 

2.   Motion to approve the 

minutes of the regular 

meeting for July 19, 2016, 

the minutes of the 

Committee of the Whole for 

August 9, 2016, the monthly 

financial statements for the 

fiscal year through July 31, 

2016, the Bill Reports for 

July/August 2016, and 

payment of the bills.     

NP Y Y Y  Y (M)Y (S)Y 

3.  Motion to authorize 

Edminster to provide a 

digital signature and to 

approve Illinois Public 

Library Annual Report 

2015-2016.   

NP Y Y (M)Y (S)Y Y Y 

4.  Motion to proceed with 

the solar array project, 

hiring Magitek Energy 

Solutions to retrofit the 

existing 10kWh system to 

work with a larger installed 

20kWh total system using 

a low profile rooftop array.  
(No second required) 

NP Y Y (M)Y Y Y Y 

5. Motion to adjourn the 

meeting at 8:30 p.m. 
NP (M)Y Y Y Y Y (S)Y 

 
A=Abstain, M=Motion, N=No, NP=Not Present, P=Present, S=Second, Y=Yes 



MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

COMPILED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2016



McHenry Public Library District 4:28 PM

Balance Sheet 09/16/2016

As of August 31, 2016 Cash Basis

Aug 31, 16

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

1060 · First Midwest Bank-Money Market

1060100 · MM - General - First Midwest 534,047.24

1060200 · MM - Spec Reserve-First Midwest 1,744,450.16

1060300 · MM - Grant & Gift-First Midwest 462,452.08

Total 1060 · First Midwest Bank-Money Market 2,740,949.48

1070100 · HSA/Building - First Midwest 373,924.02

1615100 · General Account - First Midwest 21,673.59

1625100 · Payroll Account - First Midwest 101,720.37

1635100 · Imprest Account - First Midwest 4,210.00

1045100 · PROPAY 5,250.81

1150100 · FirstMerit-MoneyMarket- 4/22/11 200,099.40

Total Checking/Savings 3,447,827.67

Other Current Assets

1005100 · Petty Cash 800.00

Total Other Current Assets 800.00

Total Current Assets 3,448,627.67

TOTAL ASSETS 3,448,627.67

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Equity

3010100 · Fund Balance - General 1,607,104.80

3010200 · Fund Balance - Special Reserve 1,744,332.86

3010300 · Fund Balance - Grants & Gifts 465,934.67

Net Income (368,744.66)

Total Equity 3,448,627.67

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 3,448,627.67

 Page 2 of 16



McHenry Public Library District 4:31 PM

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 09/16/2016

August 2016 Cash Basis

Aug 16

Income

6010100 · Property Taxes 82,834.06

6030100 · Interest Income - General 48.80

6030200 · Interest Income - Spec Reserve 61.46

6030300 · Interest Income - Grant & Gifts 16.31

6050100 · Fines 3,563.99

6055100 · Collection Fees 20.00

6060100 · Photocopier & Fax Income 772.43

6070300 · General Fund Gifts 18.06

6105100 · Staff Cobra/Insurance Payments 1,383.91

6120100 · Meeting Room Fees 10.00

6130100 · Misc Income - General 143.00

6150100 · Lost & Damged Materials 318.21

6200100 · Over/Short (5.66)

Total Income 89,184.57

Gross Profit 89,184.57

Expense

8010100 · Adult Books 10,096.31

8020100 · Youth Books 3,112.72

8025100 · Professional Resources 4,066.39

8028100 · Administrative Resources (GA) 229.99

8030100 · Magazines & Newspapers 240.49

8040300 · Operating Fund Gifts 440.34

8050100 · Adult AV Materials 3,261.19

8060100 · Youth AV Materials 652.71

8080100 · Video Games 781.73

8090100 · eBook & eMagazine Services 161.82

8095100 · Electonic Subscriptions 1,390.00

8120100 · Library Supplies 786.67

8130100 · Tech Services Supplies 1,780.17

8140100 · Adult Programs & Supplies 356.09

8145100 · Circulation Supplies 31.92

8150100 · Youth Programs & Supplies 1,213.06

8215100 · Collection Agency Fees 125.30

8245100 · Comp/OfcEqp/CopierRepairs/Contr 904.00

8310100 · CCS & SIRSI Expenses 5,902.00

8330100 · OCLC Services (cataloging) 806.00

8410100 · Payroll Exp, Acctg & Audit Serv 1,086.79

8430100 · Automation & Misc Consultants 300.00

8530100 · Public Notices & Ads 107.30

8540100 · Postage 195.67

8550100 · Public Relations/Promotions 455.45

8610100 · Electricity 3,071.46

8620100 · Gas 83.62

8630100 · Telephone 498.02

8635100 · T-1 & other Telecommunications 840.60

8640100 · Water & Sewer 1,808.97

8730100 · Bonding & Officers Liability 1,696.00

8740100 · Building & Grounds 4,016.37

 Page 3 of 16



Aug 16

8760100 · Hospitality 490.97

8770100 · Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses 9.79

8800311 · Adult Materials - PER CAPITA 14.25

8910100 · Salaries 195,218.12

8920100 · FICA/Medicare 14,651.85

8930100 · IMRF 21,241.71

8940100 · Health & Life Insurance 21,947.91

8960100 · Memberships & Dues 444.99

8970100 · Meetings & Travel 689.30

Total Expense 305,208.04

Net Income (216,023.47)

 Page 4 of 16



McHenry Public Library District 4:34 PM

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures by Class 09/16/2016

July through August 2016 Cash Basis
100 General 

Fund

200 Special 

Reserve Fund

300 Grant and 

Gift Fund TOTAL

Income

6010100 · Property Taxes 149,061.76 0.00 0.00 149,061.76

6030100 · Interest Income - General 100.46 0.00 0.00 100.46

6030200 · Interest Income - Spec Reserve 0.00 117.30 0.00 117.30

6030300 · Interest Income - Grant & Gifts 0.00 0.00 30.19 30.19

6035100 · Dividends 95.16 0.00 0.00 95.16

6040100 · Nonresident & Enhanced Cards 45.00 0.00 0.00 45.00

6050100 · Fines 6,612.08 0.00 0.00 6,612.08

6055100 · Collection Fees 60.00 0.00 0.00 60.00

6060100 · Photocopier & Fax Income 2,324.22 0.00 0.00 2,324.22

6070300 · General Fund Gifts 0.00 0.00 35.59 35.59

6105100 · Staff Cobra/Insurance Payments 2,767.82 0.00 0.00 2,767.82

6120100 · Meeting Room Fees 65.00 0.00 0.00 65.00

6130100 · Misc Income - General 286.15 0.00 0.00 286.15

6150100 · Lost & Damged Materials 625.96 0.00 0.00 625.96

6200100 · Over/Short (9.55) 0.00 0.00 (9.55)

Total Income 162,034.06 117.30 65.78 162,217.14

Gross Profit 162,034.06 117.30 65.78 162,217.14

Expense

8010100 · Adult Books 14,942.96 0.00 0.00 14,942.96

8020100 · Youth Books 4,018.32 0.00 0.00 4,018.32

8025100 · Professional Resources 4,201.39 0.00 0.00 4,201.39

8028100 · Administrative Resources (GA) 229.99 0.00 0.00 229.99

8030100 · Magazines & Newspapers 268.06 0.00 0.00 268.06

8040300 · Operating Fund Gifts 0.00 0.00 3,484.64 3,484.64

8050100 · Adult AV Materials 5,504.22 0.00 0.00 5,504.22

8060100 · Youth AV Materials 1,413.14 0.00 0.00 1,413.14

8080100 · Video Games 781.73 0.00 0.00 781.73

8090100 · eBook & eMagazine Services 369.06 0.00 0.00 369.06

8095100 · Electonic Subscriptions 6,241.68 0.00 0.00 6,241.68

8120100 · Library Supplies 944.27 0.00 0.00 944.27

8130100 · Tech Services Supplies 2,223.48 0.00 0.00 2,223.48

8140100 · Adult Programs & Supplies 3,616.09 0.00 0.00 3,616.09

8145100 · Circulation Supplies 31.92 0.00 0.00 31.92

8147100 · Summer Reading Club 24.08 0.00 0.00 24.08

8150100 · Youth Programs & Supplies 2,121.36 0.00 0.00 2,121.36

8215100 · Collection Agency Fees 170.05 0.00 0.00 170.05

8245100 · Comp/OfcEqp/CopierRepairs/Contr 10,903.74 0.00 0.00 10,903.74

8310100 · CCS & SIRSI Expenses 11,804.00 0.00 0.00 11,804.00

8320100 · Network Expenses 5,708.84 0.00 0.00 5,708.84

8330100 · OCLC Services (cataloging) 1,612.00 0.00 0.00 1,612.00

8410100 · Payroll Exp, Acctg & Audit Serv 1,800.03 0.00 0.00 1,800.03

8430100 · Automation & Misc Consultants 300.00 0.00 0.00 300.00

8440100 · In Service Honorarium 600.00 0.00 0.00 600.00

8510100 · Printing 6,964.00 0.00 0.00 6,964.00

8530100 · Public Notices & Ads 107.30 0.00 0.00 107.30

8540100 · Postage 235.31 0.00 0.00 235.31

8550100 · Public Relations/Promotions 1,015.85 0.00 0.00 1,015.85

 Page 5 of 16



100 General 

Fund

200 Special 

Reserve Fund

300 Grant and 

Gift Fund TOTAL

8610100 · Electricity 3,071.46 0.00 0.00 3,071.46

8620100 · Gas 83.62 0.00 0.00 83.62

8630100 · Telephone 999.07 0.00 0.00 999.07

8635100 · T-1 & other Telecommunications 1,176.10 0.00 0.00 1,176.10

8640100 · Water & Sewer 1,808.97 0.00 0.00 1,808.97

8730100 · Bonding & Officers Liability 1,696.00 0.00 0.00 1,696.00

8740100 · Building & Grounds 4,962.31 0.00 0.00 4,962.31

8760100 · Hospitality (75.03) 0.00 0.00 (75.03)

8770100 · Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses 9.79 0.00 0.00 9.79

8800311 · Adult Materials - PER CAPITA 0.00 0.00 63.73 63.73

8910100 · Salaries 321,443.41 0.00 0.00 321,443.41

8920100 · FICA/Medicare 24,183.15 0.00 0.00 24,183.15

8930100 · IMRF 35,176.57 0.00 0.00 35,176.57

8940100 · Health & Life Insurance 47,010.71 0.00 0.00 47,010.71

8960100 · Memberships & Dues 559.99 0.00 0.00 559.99

8970100 · Meetings & Travel 688.22 0.00 0.00 688.22

9060100 · Library Furnishings 913.25 0.00 0.00 913.25

9090100 · Additional Capital Projects (4,447.03) 0.00 0.00 (4,447.03)

Total Expense 527,413.43 0.00 3,548.37 530,961.80

Net Income (365,379.37) 117.30 (3,482.59) (368,744.66)

 Page 6 of 16



McHenry Public Library District 4:37 PM

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Budget vs. Actual 09/16/2016

July through August 2016 Cash Basis

Jul - Aug 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income

6010100 · Property Taxes 149,061.76 3,180,652.28 (3,031,590.52) 4.69%

6020200 · Developer Fees 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%

6030100 · Interest Income - General 100.46 5,000.00 (4,899.54) 2.01%

6030200 · Interest Income - Spec Reserve 117.30 3,000.00 (2,882.70) 3.91%

6030300 · Interest Income - Grant & Gifts 30.19 2,500.00 (2,469.81) 1.21%

6035100 · Dividends 95.16 500.00 (404.84) 19.03%

6040100 · Nonresident & Enhanced Cards 45.00 1,000.00 (955.00) 4.5%

6050100 · Fines 6,612.08 45,000.00 (38,387.92) 14.69%

6055100 · Collection Fees 60.00 1,000.00 (940.00) 6.0%

6060100 · Photocopier & Fax Income 2,324.22 17,000.00 (14,675.78) 13.67%

6070200 · Reserve Fund Gifts 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%

6070300 · General Fund Gifts 35.59 20,000.00 (19,964.41) 0.18%

6090100 · Annexation Impact Fees 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.0%

6090200 · Transfer from General Fund 0.00 800,000.00 (800,000.00) 0.0%

6105100 · Staff Cobra/Insurance Payments 2,767.82 12,000.00 (9,232.18) 23.07%

6110100 · Program Fees/Misc Fees 0.00 4,200.00 (4,200.00) 0.0%

6120100 · Meeting Room Fees 65.00 1,000.00 (935.00) 6.5%

6130100 · Misc Income - General 286.15 25,000.00 (24,713.85) 1.15%

6130200 · Misc Income - Special Reserve 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%

6150100 · Lost & Damged Materials 625.96 6,000.00 (5,374.04) 10.43%

6170300 · Per Capita Grant 0.00 84,893.43 (84,893.43) 0.0%

6200100 · Over/Short (9.55) 0.00 (9.55) 100.0%

6210300 · Miscellaneous Grants 0.00 50,000.00 (50,000.00) 0.0%

Total Income 162,217.14 4,311,745.71 (4,149,528.57) 3.76%

Gross Profit 162,217.14 4,311,745.71 (4,149,528.57) 3.76%

Expense

8010100 · Adult Books 14,942.96 85,000.00 (70,057.04) 17.58%

8020100 · Youth Books 4,018.32 59,000.00 (54,981.68) 6.81%

8025100 · Professional Resources 4,201.39 1,500.00 2,701.39 280.09%

8028100 · Administrative Resources (GA) 229.99 6,400.00 (6,170.01) 3.59%

8030100 · Magazines & Newspapers 268.06 15,000.00 (14,731.94) 1.79%

8040300 · Operating Fund Gifts 3,484.64 448,381.10 (444,896.46) 0.78%

8050100 · Adult AV Materials 5,504.22 62,000.00 (56,495.78) 8.88%

8060100 · Youth AV Materials 1,413.14 16,000.00 (14,586.86) 8.83%

8080100 · Video Games 781.73 15,000.00 (14,218.27) 5.21%

8090100 · eBook & eMagazine Services 369.06 55,500.00 (55,130.94) 0.67%

8095100 · Electonic Subscriptions 6,241.68 80,000.00 (73,758.32) 7.8%

8110100 · Bank Service Charges 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.0%

8120100 · Library Supplies 944.27 10,000.00 (9,055.73) 9.44%

8130100 · Tech Services Supplies 2,223.48 57,200.00 (54,976.52) 3.89%

8135100 · Bindery 0.00 150.00 (150.00) 0.0%

8140100 · Adult Programs & Supplies 3,616.09 22,000.00 (18,383.91) 16.44%

8145100 · Circulation Supplies 31.92 26,000.00 (25,968.08) 0.12%

8147100 · Summer Reading Club 24.08 7,000.00 (6,975.92) 0.34%

8150100 · Youth Programs & Supplies 2,121.36 21,500.00 (19,378.64) 9.87%

8215100 · Collection Agency Fees 170.05 1,500.00 (1,329.95) 11.34%

8245100 · Comp/OfcEqp/CopierRepairs/Contr 10,903.74 59,000.00 (48,096.26) 18.48%

 Page 7 of 16



Jul - Aug 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

8260100 · Misc Contracted Services 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%

8270100 · Finance/Late Fee Charges 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.0%

8310100 · CCS & SIRSI Expenses 11,804.00 80,000.00 (68,196.00) 14.76%

8320100 · Network Expenses 5,708.84 25,000.00 (19,291.16) 22.84%

8330100 · OCLC Services (cataloging) 1,612.00 8,000.00 (6,388.00) 20.15%

8410100 · Payroll Exp, Acctg & Audit Serv 1,800.03 28,000.00 (26,199.97) 6.43%

8420100 · Legal Services 0.00 1,500.00 (1,500.00) 0.0%

8430100 · Automation & Misc Consultants 300.00 14,000.00 (13,700.00) 2.14%

8440100 · In Service Honorarium 600.00 1,000.00 (400.00) 60.0%

8510100 · Printing 6,964.00 36,000.00 (29,036.00) 19.34%

8530100 · Public Notices & Ads 107.30 3,000.00 (2,892.70) 3.58%

8540100 · Postage 235.31 18,000.00 (17,764.69) 1.31%

8550100 · Public Relations/Promotions 1,015.85 10,000.00 (8,984.15) 10.16%

8610100 · Electricity 3,071.46 25,000.00 (21,928.54) 12.29%

8620100 · Gas 83.62 5,000.00 (4,916.38) 1.67%

8630100 · Telephone 999.07 12,000.00 (11,000.93) 8.33%

8635100 · T-1 & other Telecommunications 1,176.10 8,000.00 (6,823.90) 14.7%

8640100 · Water & Sewer 1,808.97 3,500.00 (1,691.03) 51.69%

8720100 · Building/Auto Insurance 0.00 32,000.00 (32,000.00) 0.0%

8730100 · Bonding & Officers Liability 1,696.00 5,500.00 (3,804.00) 30.84%

8740100 · Building & Grounds 4,962.31 54,000.00 (49,037.69) 9.19%

8760100 · Hospitality (75.03) 13,000.00 (13,075.03) (0.58%)

8770100 · Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses 9.79 700.00 (690.21) 1.4%

8795100 · Miscellaneous (FH) 0.00 4,000.00 (4,000.00) 0.0%

8800300 · Per Capita Grant expense for FY 0.00 32,393.43 (32,393.43) 0.0%

8800311 · Adult Materials - PER CAPITA 63.73 0.00 63.73 100.0%

8910100 · Salaries 321,443.41 1,810,000.00 (1,488,556.59) 17.76%

8920100 · FICA/Medicare 24,183.15 145,000.00 (120,816.85) 16.68%

8930100 · IMRF 35,176.57 180,000.00 (144,823.43) 19.54%

8940100 · Health & Life Insurance 47,010.71 220,000.00 (172,989.29) 21.37%

8950100 · Tuition Reimbursement 0.00 9,000.00 (9,000.00) 0.0%

8960100 · Memberships & Dues 559.99 8,000.00 (7,440.01) 7.0%

8970100 · Meetings & Travel 688.22 14,000.00 (13,311.78) 4.92%

9030300 · Misc Grants 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%

9050200 · Library District Act 0.00 150,000.00 (150,000.00) 0.0%

9060100 · Library Furnishings 913.25 50,000.00 (49,086.75) 1.83%

9070100 · Library Equipment 0.00 70,000.00 (70,000.00) 0.0%

9080100 · Small Equipment Under $250 0.00 10,000.00 (10,000.00) 0.0%

9090100 · Additional Capital Projects (4,447.03) 320,000.00 (324,447.03) (1.39%)

Total Expense 530,961.80 4,481,724.53 (3,950,762.73) 11.85%

Net Income (368,744.66) (169,978.82) (198,765.84) 216.94%

 Page 8 of 16



McHenry Public Library District 4:40 PM

Statement of Revenue and Expenditures Budget vs. Actual 09/16/2016

July 1, 2016 - August 31, 2016 - General Fund Cash Basis

Jul - Aug 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income

6010100 · Property Taxes 149,061.76 3,180,652.28 (3,031,590.52) 4.69%

6030100 · Interest Income - General 100.46 5,000.00 (4,899.54) 2.01%

6035100 · Dividends 95.16 500.00 (404.84) 19.03%

6040100 · Nonresident & Enhanced Cards 45.00 1,000.00 (955.00) 4.5%

6050100 · Fines 6,612.08 45,000.00 (38,387.92) 14.69%

6055100 · Collection Fees 60.00 1,000.00 (940.00) 6.0%

6060100 · Photocopier & Fax Income 2,324.22 17,000.00 (14,675.78) 13.67%

6090100 · Annexation Impact Fees 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.0%

6105100 · Staff Cobra/Insurance Payments 2,767.82 12,000.00 (9,232.18) 23.07%

6110100 · Program Fees/Misc Fees 0.00 4,200.00 (4,200.00) 0.0%

6120100 · Meeting Room Fees 65.00 1,000.00 (935.00) 6.5%

6130100 · Misc Income - General 286.15 25,000.00 (24,713.85) 1.15%

6150100 · Lost & Damged Materials 625.96 6,000.00 (5,374.04) 10.43%

6200100 · Over/Short (9.55) 0.00 (9.55) 100.0%

Total Income 162,034.06 3,299,352.28 (3,137,318.22) 4.91%

Gross Profit 162,034.06 3,299,352.28 (3,137,318.22) 4.91%

Expense

8010100 · Adult Books 14,942.96 85,000.00 (70,057.04) 17.58%

8020100 · Youth Books 4,018.32 59,000.00 (54,981.68) 6.81%

8025100 · Professional Resources 4,201.39 1,500.00 2,701.39 280.09%

8028100 · Administrative Resources (GA) 229.99 6,400.00 (6,170.01) 3.59%

8030100 · Magazines & Newspapers 268.06 15,000.00 (14,731.94) 1.79%

8050100 · Adult AV Materials 5,504.22 62,000.00 (56,495.78) 8.88%

8060100 · Youth AV Materials 1,413.14 16,000.00 (14,586.86) 8.83%

8080100 · Video Games 781.73 15,000.00 (14,218.27) 5.21%

8090100 · eBook & eMagazine Services 369.06 55,500.00 (55,130.94) 0.67%

8095100 · Electonic Subscriptions 6,241.68 80,000.00 (73,758.32) 7.8%

8110100 · Bank Service Charges 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.0%

8120100 · Library Supplies 944.27 10,000.00 (9,055.73) 9.44%

8130100 · Tech Services Supplies 2,223.48 57,200.00 (54,976.52) 3.89%

8135100 · Bindery 0.00 150.00 (150.00) 0.0%

8140100 · Adult Programs & Supplies 3,616.09 22,000.00 (18,383.91) 16.44%

8145100 · Circulation Supplies 31.92 26,000.00 (25,968.08) 0.12%

8147100 · Summer Reading Club 24.08 7,000.00 (6,975.92) 0.34%

8150100 · Youth Programs & Supplies 2,121.36 21,500.00 (19,378.64) 9.87%

8215100 · Collection Agency Fees 170.05 1,500.00 (1,329.95) 11.34%

8245100 · Comp/OfcEqp/CopierRepairs/Contr 10,903.74 59,000.00 (48,096.26) 18.48%

8260100 · Misc Contracted Services 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%

8270100 · Finance/Late Fee Charges 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.0%

8310100 · CCS & SIRSI Expenses 11,804.00 80,000.00 (68,196.00) 14.76%

8320100 · Network Expenses 5,708.84 25,000.00 (19,291.16) 22.84%

8330100 · OCLC Services (cataloging) 1,612.00 8,000.00 (6,388.00) 20.15%

8410100 · Payroll Exp, Acctg & Audit Serv 1,800.03 28,000.00 (26,199.97) 6.43%

8420100 · Legal Services 0.00 1,500.00 (1,500.00) 0.0%

8430100 · Automation & Misc Consultants 300.00 14,000.00 (13,700.00) 2.14%

8440100 · In Service Honorarium 600.00 1,000.00 (400.00) 60.0%

8510100 · Printing 6,964.00 36,000.00 (29,036.00) 19.34%

 Page 9 of 16



Jul - Aug 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

8530100 · Public Notices & Ads 107.30 3,000.00 (2,892.70) 3.58%

8540100 · Postage 235.31 18,000.00 (17,764.69) 1.31%

8550100 · Public Relations/Promotions 1,015.85 10,000.00 (8,984.15) 10.16%

8610100 · Electricity 3,071.46 25,000.00 (21,928.54) 12.29%

8620100 · Gas 83.62 5,000.00 (4,916.38) 1.67%

8630100 · Telephone 999.07 12,000.00 (11,000.93) 8.33%

8635100 · T-1 & other Telecommunications 1,176.10 8,000.00 (6,823.90) 14.7%

8640100 · Water & Sewer 1,808.97 3,500.00 (1,691.03) 51.69%

8720100 · Building/Auto Insurance 0.00 32,000.00 (32,000.00) 0.0%

8730100 · Bonding & Officers Liability 1,696.00 5,500.00 (3,804.00) 30.84%

8740100 · Building & Grounds 4,962.31 54,000.00 (49,037.69) 9.19%

8760100 · Hospitality (75.03) 13,000.00 (13,075.03) (0.58%)

8770100 · Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses 9.79 700.00 (690.21) 1.4%

8795100 · Miscellaneous (FH) 0.00 4,000.00 (4,000.00) 0.0%

8910100 · Salaries 321,443.41 1,810,000.00 (1,488,556.59) 17.76%

8920100 · FICA/Medicare 24,183.15 145,000.00 (120,816.85) 16.68%

8930100 · IMRF 35,176.57 180,000.00 (144,823.43) 19.54%

8940100 · Health & Life Insurance 47,010.71 220,000.00 (172,989.29) 21.37%

8950100 · Tuition Reimbursement 0.00 9,000.00 (9,000.00) 0.0%

8960100 · Memberships & Dues 559.99 8,000.00 (7,440.01) 7.0%

8970100 · Meetings & Travel 688.22 14,000.00 (13,311.78) 4.92%

9060100 · Library Furnishings 913.25 50,000.00 (49,086.75) 1.83%

9070100 · Library Equipment 0.00 70,000.00 (70,000.00) 0.0%

9080100 · Small Equipment Under $250 0.00 10,000.00 (10,000.00) 0.0%

9090100 · Additional Capital Projects (4,447.03) 320,000.00 (324,447.03) (1.39%)

Total Expense 527,413.43 3,825,950.00 (3,298,536.57) 13.79%

Net Income (365,379.37) (526,597.72) 161,218.35 69.39%

 Page 10 of 16



McHenry Public Library District 4:41 PM

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Budget vs. Actual 09/16/2016

July 1, 2016 - August 31, 2016 -Special Reserve Fund Cash Basis

Jul - Aug 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income

6020200 · Developer Fees 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%

6030200 · Interest Income - Spec Reserve 117.30 3,000.00 (2,882.70) 3.91%

6070200 · Reserve Fund Gifts 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%

6090200 · Transfer from General Fund 0.00 800,000.00 (800,000.00) 0.0%

6130200 · Misc Income - Special Reserve 0.00 2,000.00 (2,000.00) 0.0%

Total Income 117.30 855,000.00 (854,882.70) 0.01%

Gross Profit 117.30 855,000.00 (854,882.70) 0.01%

Expense

9050200 · Library District Act 0.00 150,000.00 (150,000.00) 0.0%

Total Expense 0.00 150,000.00 (150,000.00) 0.0%

Net Income 117.30 705,000.00 (704,882.70) 0.02%

 Page 11 of 16



McHenry Public Library District 4:44 PM

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures Budget vs. Actual 09/16/2016

July 1, 2016 - August 31, 2016 - Grant and Gift Fund Cash Basis

Jul - Aug 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income

6030300 · Interest Income - Grant & Gifts 30.19 2,500.00 (2,469.81) 1.21%

6070300 · General Fund Gifts 35.59 20,000.00 (19,964.41) 0.18%

6170300 · Per Capita Grant 0.00 84,893.43 (84,893.43) 0.0%

6210300 · Miscellaneous Grants 0.00 50,000.00 (50,000.00) 0.0%

Total Income 65.78 157,393.43 (157,327.65) 0.04%

Gross Profit 65.78 157,393.43 (157,327.65) 0.04%

Expense

8040300 · Operating Fund Gifts 3,484.64 448,381.10 (444,896.46) 0.78%

8800300 · Per Capita Grant expense for FY 0.00 32,393.43 (32,393.43) 0.0%

8800311 · Adult Materials - PER CAPITA 63.73 0.00 63.73 100.0%

9030300 · Misc Grants 0.00 25,000.00 (25,000.00) 0.0%

Total Expense 3,548.37 505,774.53 (502,226.16) 0.7%

Net Income (3,482.59) (348,381.10) 344,898.51 1.0%

 Page 12 of 16



McHenry Public Library District

INTERIM CHECKS ISSUED - August 2016

(NOT INCLUDED ON BILL REPORT)

Account - Money Market    

VENDOR DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT ACCT# DATE CHECK

(no checks written on this account)

subtotal for account -$               

Account - General Fund

VENDOR DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT ACCT# DATE CHECK

Comcast T-1 & other Telecommunications 505.10$         8635-100 08/11/16 EFT

subtotal for account 505.10$         

Account - HSA/Building 

First Midwest Bank employee contributions HSA 693.94$         8940-100 08/04/16 EFT

First Midwest Bank employer contributions HSA 646.24$         8940-100 08/04/16 EFT

First Midwest Bank employee contributions HSA 693.94$         8940-100 08/23/16 EFT

First Midwest Bank employer contributions HSA 646.24$         8940-100 08/23/16 EFT

subtotal for account 2,680.36$      

Account  - Payroll    

VENDOR DESCRIPTION  AMOUNT ACCT# DATE CHECK

subtotal for account -$               

Account - Imprest    

VENDOR DESCRIPTION   AMOUNT  ACCT# DATE CHECK

Golden Age Cinemas, LLC Public Relations/Promotions 360.00$         8550-100 08/18/16 1128

 subtotal for account 360.00$            

 

GRAND TOTAL CHECKS ISSUED 3,545.46$      



BANKCARD PROCESSING CENTER

August 2016
STAFF VENDOR DATE  Amount LINE
Edminster Rockford Map Publishers 7/16  $       163.50 8010-100

Edminster Rockford Map Publishers 7/18  $        (11.55) 8010-100  $      151.95 

Scholtz Amazon Com 7/9 34.39$          8025-100  $        34.39 

Gunness Simpleinout 7/12  $         29.99 8028-100

Gunness The Management Assoc 7/13  $       200.00 8028-100  $      229.99 

Gunness Shaw Suburban Media 7/11  $         48.09 8030-100

Gunness Sun Times Circ 8/4  $       192.40 8030-100  $      240.49 

Jakacki Walmart 7/17 26.04$          8040-300

Jakacki Five Below 7/17 67.00$          8040-300

Raleigh The Home Depot 7/14 10.16$          8040-300

Raleigh Jimano's Pizzeria 7/21 22.36$          8040-300

Raleigh Fox Lake Theatre 7/30 50.00$          8040-300  $      175.56 

Edminster Dollar Tree com 8/3  $       174.54 8120-100 174.54$       

Strain Hobby Lobby 7/15 56.09$          8140-100  $        56.09 

Jakacki Party City 7/11 11.95$          8150-100

Jakacki Michaels 7/17 64.78$          8150-100

Jakacki Ed's Rentals and Sales 7/21 9.00$            8150-100

Jakacki Jewel 7/23 19.55$          8150-100

Jakacki Target 7/29 21.70$          8150-100

Jakacki Dollar Tree 7/29 24.00$          8150-100

Jakacki WM Supercenter 7/29 100.14$        8150-100

Jakacki WM Supercenter 7/31 60.15$          8150-100

Jakacki WM Supercenter 8/4 8.48$            8150-100

Jakacki Michaels 8/7 14.78$          8150-100

Jakacki Target 8/7 7.28$            8150-100 341.81$       

Gunness USPS Postage 7/12  $       100.00 8540-100

Harding The UPS Store 7/27  $         91.66 8540-100

Lambert USPS 7/20 14.70$          8540-100 206.36$       

Gunness Positive Promotions 7/20  $        (50.00) 8550-100

Lambert Positive Promotions 7/11 145.45$        8550-100 95.45$         

Harding Birchwood Equipment LLC 7/8  $         27.75 8740-100

Harding Birchwood Equipment LLC 7/8  $       156.12 8740-100

Harding IMSI Designs 7/13  $       369.99 8740-100

Harding Adams Steel Service 7/18  $       336.66 8740-100

Harding GW Berkheimer 7/22  $       121.59 8740-100

Harding BP McHenry 8/1  $         19.00 8740-100

Lambert USPS 7/14 15.34$          8740-100

Lambert USPS 7/28 12.86$          8740-100

Lambert USPS 8/4 10.84$          8740-100 1,070.15$    

Lambert Hallmark Business Connect 7/13 275.00$        8760-100

Lambert Jewel 7/18 38.96$          8760-100

Lambert Jewel 8/1 20.98$          8760-100

Strain Target 7/28 100.00$        8760-100 434.94$       



BANKCARD PROCESSING CENTER

August 2016
STAFF VENDOR DATE  Amount LINE
Edminster Amazon Prime Membership 7/28  $         10.99 8960-100

Gunness The Management Assoc 7/13  $       250.00 8960-100

Jakacki Amazon Prime Membership 7/8 99.00$          8960-100 359.99$       

Gunness OPC McHenry College 7/14  $         69.00 8970-100 69.00$         

BANKCARD PROCESSING CENTER 3,640.71$     TOTAL 3,640.71$    

P O BOX 31021

TAMPA, FL  33631-3021



BANKCARD PROCESSING CENTER

September 2016
STAFF VENDOR DATE  Amount LINE  
Lambert 4Imprint 8/17 452.83$        8150-100 452.83$       

Gunness SimpleInOut 8/12  $         29.99 8028-100 29.99$         

Gunness Shaw Suburban Media 8/11  $         48.09 8030-100 48.09$         

Amstadt SP Leadership 8/30  $       249.00 8145-100 249.00$       

Edminster Dollar Tree 9/3  $         12.00 8150-100

Jakacki Oriental Trading 8/11 146.90$        8150-100

Jakacki S&S Worldwide 8/10 147.98$        8150-100

Jakacki S&S Worldwide 8/17 23.98$          8150-100

Jakacki Walmart 8/20 (17.36)$        8150-100

Jakacki APL Itunes 8/22 5.30$            8150-100

Jakacki Hobby-Lobby 8/23 18.17$          8150-100

Jakacki Menards 8/26 17.20$          8150-100

Jakacki Menards 9/3 13.95$          8150-100

Raleigh Walmart 8/10 33.74$          8150-100

Raleigh Gamestop 8/13 25.00$          8150-100

Raleigh Jimano's Pizza 8/19 27.73$          8150-100 454.59$       

Lambert USPS 8/9 18.28$          8540-100

Lambert USPS 8/18 10.84$          8540-100

Lambert USPS 8/23 9.92$            8540-100

Lambert USPS 8/26 27.13$          8540-100

Lambert USPS 8/31 10.84$          8540-100

Lambert USPS 9/2 13.32$          8540-100 90.33$         

Lambert 4Imprint 8/18 282.97$        8550-100

Lambert 4Imprint 9/2 728.77$        8550-100 1,011.74$    

Harding Proliphix 8/16  $       100.00 8740-100

Harding BP McHenry 8/23  $         19.01 8740-100 119.01$       

Gunness Costco 8/19  $         75.79 8760-100

Jakacki DD/BR 8/30 19.34$          8760-100

Lambert Culvers of Crystal Lake 8/10 15.00$          8760-100

Lambert Amazon.com 8/10 25.00$          8760-100

Lambert Starbucks store 8/10 15.00$          8760-100

Lambert Barnes & Noble 8/10 15.00$          8760-100

Lambert Fast Eddie's Car Wash 8/10 15.00$          8760-100

Lambert Jewel 8/12 21.47$          8760-100

Raleigh Walmart 8/15 40.17$          8760-100 241.77$       

Edminster AmazonPrime Membership 8/8  $         10.99 8960-100

Gunness Costco 8/16  $       110.00 8960-100

Raleigh American Library Assoc. 8/31 247.00$        8960-100 367.99$       

Jakacki Panera Bread 8/25 37.52$          8970-100

Lambert McHenry Area Chamber 8/29 56.00$          8970-100

Raleigh Portillos Hot Dogs 8/16 43.89$          8970-100

Raleigh EB Rass Engaging Teen 8/31 15.00$          8970-100 152.41$       

BANKCARD PROCESSING CENTER 3,217.75$     TOTAL 3,217.75$    

P O BOX 31021

TAMPA, FL  33631-3021







McHenry Public Library District 

LIBRARIAN’S REPORT 

August 2016 

 

 

 

Administration 

 B. Edminster received training on Gale Cengage Career Online High School, 8/16, 8/23, 8/30. 

 B. Edminster, L. Jakacki, P. Strain, K. Lambert, and Z. Terrill met with the Recorded Books 

representative to discuss the Zinio renewal and new products from Recorded Books, 8/31. 

 B. Edminster led the Classic Book Discussion of The Iceman Cometh by Eugene O’Neill, 9/19. 

 J. Scholtz receiving bids on telephone service (RingCentral, Comcast, MegaPath, Vonage and 

local company In-Sync).  

 J. Scholtz attended IL Comptroller’s mtg (Rockford) 9/7. 

 Admin. working on annual audit FY15/16 – August-September 

 Solar array approved by board (Aug) – J. Scholtz working with vendor and city to establish 

installation timetable and permits. 

 Scholtz working on digitization project for Richmond Gazette – could mean funding for 

digitization of PlainDealer (already available on NewsBank/Newspapers.com) 

 

 

Adult Services 

 Added 3 new Outreach patrons to our 83 patrons. One patron also signed up to have materials 
checked out for her and picked up by a family member. L. Mann 

 I received a call from a patron who wanted to know where he could find the least expensive 
prescriptions for his dog. T. O’Toole 

 Senior Services requested an information library visit in October. L. Mann 

 Patron was looking for a local LARPing (live action role playing) group. Found one in Crystal 
Lake. L. Mann 

 Historical Society loaned the library a display on telephones. This display will run the month of 
August. L. Mann 

 Magnifying machines have been cataloged & are now available for an extended check out to 
MPLD cardholders. L. Mann 

 Delivered and taught patron how to use Magnifying Machine. Z. Terrill 

 Delivered paperback books to Senior Services for the community paperback exchange. Also 
dropped off library created informational booklets MPLD Senior Services & Resources and 
Community Connections for Seniors. L. Mann 

 Attended training for Blue Cloud Analytics L. Mann, P. Strain, Z. Terrill, C. Myers 

 Attended Reaching Forward Meeting. Z. Terrill 

 Attended Community Wiki Meeting: T. Hillary 

 Started MPLD Staff Picks Fridays on the library’s Facebook page. Every other Friday I will 
interview a staff member about what they are reading and share it with the community.  
J. Scholtz is my first Staff Picks. B. Edminster will be the mid-August pick. L. Mann 

 Staff is using Blue Cloud Analytics to derive shelf lists for weeding. It is much easier and more 
intuitive to use than Director’s Station. 

 
 

 

 



 

 

Building Services 

 C. P worked on relining parking lot (yellow lines) – great work!!  

 J. Scholtz/D. Harding employed In-Sync to trouble-shoot emergency phone line in Lift (9/6).  

Also In-Sync will be looking to bid out internal telephone service. 

 

Circulation 

 S. Willis reports total of 191 expired holds pulled 

 The month of August we had A. Howell, K. Meagher, and J. Stevens join the staff. 

 B. Niepsuj gave a bin-packing tutorial during staff in service. 

 Circ staff spent the better part of August training new staff, and recovering from Summer 

Reading. 

 

 

Human Resources 

 One (1) new employee was hired in Circulation in August (front desk position). 

 Received 2016 Library Survey from the Management Association – a survey of compensation 

and benefits for library personnel.  Will use as a reference to review benefit offerings and 

evaluate salaries as needed. 

 We have begun to evaluate our pending recruitment process for a Circulation Manager and 

actions to be taken prior to receipt of the employee’s final day at MPLD. 

 Milestone Service Anniversaries: 

o Angel Nicholls reached 10 years of service   

o Gwen Doolan reached 20 years of service 

 Salary Increase Information:  Data is pulled from 3 months (vs. monthly) to maintain 

confidentiality and also provide meaningful numbers. 

o Average Salary increase for the Last Calendar Quarter – 1.96% 

o Average Salary Increase for the (rolling) Last 3-months – 1.98% 

 This average calculation is missing data from one employee whose salary 

increase has not yet been submitted. 

 Have worked with the supervisor of two (2) employees to prepare written performance 

improvement plans. 

 Conducted an investigation on an issue of high complexity which involved consultation with the 

Management Association.  Resolution implemented. 

 Addressed an employee issue of high complexity which involved consultation with the 

Management Association.  Resolution implemented and will be on-going. 

 In-Service Meeting on 8/12/16 was attended by approx. 81% of all staff.  Informative topic of 

acknowledging those with mental health issues was well received.  

 Attended the Management Association’s Roundtable Discussion for HR in Palatine. 

 Attended RAILS seminar on “Managing Change” in Deerfield. 

 Participated in webinars on the following topics: 

o Onboarding/New Employee Orientation 

o Aging Workforce 

o FLSA Changes 

 



Public Relations  

 Met with rep from Chamber Guide to purchase ad in upcoming guide. Designed ad with text and 

submitted for publishing. 

 Participated in an Events Calendar webinar showcasing improvements in their new SignUp and 

Rooms modules. Shared with Public Services. 

 Participated in Career Online High School webinar with Bill; focused on marketing efforts. 

Began creating promotional materials for this program. 

 Participated in meeting with B. Schwarting from Recorded Books re: new products and 

enhancements to Zinio Digital Magazines product. 

 Promoted upcoming programs and events through various media. 

 Updated website and social media. 

 Attended Management Team meeting, staff In-Service and Sunshine Committee meeting. 

 

 

Technical Services   

 K. Walker continued creating on-order records, checking new material, processing magazines, 
and hosted and moderated the monthly D&D program.  He also continued removing old faded 
spine labels and attaching new spine labels. 

 D. Lavin continued cataloging books, cataloging magazines, creating bookplates, and spine 
labels.  She also prepared and submitted the annual EBSCO magazine order.  Ordered 
Computype labels and ink. 

 K. Meadows continued processing new books, mending damaged books, checking materials 
out review, and changing items to regular circulation from new status.  She also continued 
removing old faded spine labels and attaching new spine labels. 

 P. Radic continued processing new AV materials and mending damaged AV containers. 

 K. Milfajt continued cataloging AV and genealogy, importing bibliographic records from OCLC, 
and adding original bibliographic records to OCLC.  She also hosted and moderated the 
contemporary book group discussion of Outliers by Malcolm Gladwell.  Attended CCS 
catalogers meetings and SCRAP meetings.  Prepared presentation of fiction cataloging for 
September cataloger’s workshop.  Completed Skillsoft Microsoft Windows 10 online course. 
Was named CCS Star in CCS newsletter for excellent work with new phone system. 

 K. Kimbrel continued cataloging new books and importing records from OCLC.  Also made new 
spine labels to replace faded spine labels.  Ordered supplies for Technical Services department.  
Re-cataloged item records that were no longer correct.  
 

 

Technology 

 Our Public Computers were used for august was 3653 patrons (AR 2584, YP 963, Distance 

Learning 35, Express Internet 48, Overdrive 1, and Literacy 26 & Genealogy 21) used the Public 

workstations 2,243 hours & 32 minutes (134,606 minutes). 

 17,128 items were checked out by 1,470 patrons at the Three (3) book self-check units in 31 

days we were open this month.  

 We Had 1023 unique Patrons accessed our Wi-Fi users during August. 

 MPLit installed a new Antivirus update that supports windows 10 on 27 Adult and 12 Youth 

computers this month. 

 MPLit Updated All Public workstations (OS, FireFox, Chrome, Flash, Libre Office, Java, 

cutePDF & Adobe DC) were updated in August. 

 Silhouette studio was installed on all 13 training Laptops for our YPS vinyl cutting class. 

 This month MPLit closed 135 Helpdesk tickets 

 



Youth Services 

 Youth Services’ Dept.  finished up the Summer Lunch program on 8/19/16. Our August 
attendance for the program was Summer Lunch: 246 lunches served and 336 patrons in 
attendance (253 kids and 83 adults).  

 Youth Services attended training for the CACFP After-School Snack program in August. The 90 
minute training session covers IL Health Department Safe Food Handling and the Northern IL 
Food Bank’s procedures. A big change this program year is that all our count sheets will be 
completed and submitted via an app. The After-School Snack program begins in the library on 
Sept. 9, 2016. 

 Spanish Interactions: 97 –Adult, 21-teen, 126-children 

 J. Velasquez hosted Back to School Bingo ¡en español! And patrons enjoyed playing different 
games of Back to School Bingo en espanol, looking for tijeras (scissors), crayones (crayons), la 
manzana (apple) and more for a bag of great school supplies. They were happy with the 
selection of folders and were appreciative! A few’ Little Ones’ entering pre-K and head start won 
and all were exposed to new school vocabulary! 

 C. Bergan hosted the first meeting of the CryptoClub teaching tweens about codes and ciphers. 
Caitlin attended training from the University of Illinois in July to become a facilitator of this 
program. They tweens had to craft a basic code in order to find their nametag and the program 
went on from there. The tweens loved the program even though the codes frustrated them at 
times, but the worked through them.  

 A mom in Together Time told M. Dineen how great it was that the library was offering this 
program. She watches her 6 year old nephew and has a 2 year old so she was happy to find 
something to bring them both to.  The Together Time program is a set up more as a play group 
for parents and children rather than a structured storytime. This given the kids and the parents 
more chances for social interaction with each other.  

 G. Doolan hosted the “Drive In Storytime” program this August. The kids decorated boxes for 
cars with help from their parents and then everyone watched two short movies. Parents left 
saying “One of the best programs ever” and “Do this again.” 

 R. Raleigh’s TAG (Teen Advisory Group) hosted the first program they planned for other teens. 
The held a Wii Super Smash Tournament on a weekend in August and it was a popular event. 
The TAG members planned how the tournament would run, helped set-up the equipment, and 
ran the event 

 While M. Cairo was sitting at the desk a few weeks ago, a mom and her 2 ½ old son came to 
ask a question. The boy looked at her with a straight face and asked “ pangolin book”. You can 
imagine her response! She had no idea what a pangolin even was! Mom went on to explain that 
her son was fascinated with these mammals from seeing one on a National Geographic show. 
“He eats, drinks and is now obsessed with pangolins, PLEASE have a book on them”! M. Cairo 
is happy to say that we do have a book on pangolins appropriately titled, “What on Earth is a 
Pangolin?” by Edward Ricciuti. 

 J. Drinka presented “Fools Puppets Unleashed” which was a big hit. The kids first were treated 
to a puppet show written and performed by Joe. The kids created their own puppets and were 
given the chance to introduce and present their original creations. More patrons attended came 
than registered for the program.   

 L. Jakacki prepared and chaired the biannual NSDC meeting at the end of August. This 
included preparing the agenda, collecting financial information, providing statistical information 
regarding ordering, circulation and holds for the consortium. At the meeting, we discussed better 
ways to use our budget based on who is using the collection, how to address the growing 
demands of holds and better ways to market our eMaterials.  

 The YS Department’s School Liaisons (R. Raleigh, C. Bergan, M. Cairo, J. Velasquez and G. 
Doolan) were busy this month getting ready for the new school year. They updated the Teacher 
Services brochures, sent letters to principals and school librarians, visited Preschool directors; 
prepare materials for the Choice Menu conference and more. Something new this year is a 
video created by C. Bergan and featuring C. Bergan, M. Cairo and J. Velasquez highlighting the 
Teacher Checkout Service available to D15 and D156 teachers. You can check it out here: 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=k5cGoobrDi4. 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=k5cGoobrDi4


  

 

Statistics and Highlights Narrative 

Legend – ABk – Adult Books; JBk – Children’s Books; PBk – Paperback Books; AudBk – Audio books; JAudBk – 

Children’s Audio books; ILL – Interlibrary loan; Vid/DVD – Videos/DVDs; JVid/DVD – Children’s Videos/DVDs; 

Oth - Other 

The TS Dept. added x1628 items (-186%) and withdrew 2432 (+39%) compared with August 2016.  
Staff also mended 1424 items (-22%) and processed 1582 new items (-21%).    Overall circulation 
decreased by (-1%) from the previous year/month and we were open 2 more days (29).  All areas 
except AAud and Vid/DVD decreased in Circulation. Holds increased (+13% but renewal decreased (-
4%).  Patron traffic increased by +10% (16,750 but the video count ave. was only 15,094. 

Also our eMagazine/Zinio was at (-24%) with digital downloads (+1%, 2228), Zinio and Hoopla were at 
(-24% and +24% respectively.  Internet use (Adult +8 and youth +15%) but overall, use declined by -
4%).   Our study room use increased by (+17%) but meeting room use declined (-16%).  Programs for 
all age groups were up – (adult +38%; child +11%; teen +50%).    

UpComing Events and Projects 
 Set-up staff/board visits to area libraries and RFID libraries (Aug/Sept) 

 B. Brandais movie poster display 9/17 

 Possibly arrange solar array project/paperwork (Aug/Oct) 

 J. Scholtz helps with 2 programs – Democracy and Native American Flute Music (Oct.) 

 Help select new ILS vendor (CCS?) and help select new CCS Director 

 Lift station project (discovery) 

 Exploration of various community projects (supply garden/Chautauqua, etc.) 

 Continue with Docuware scanning of documents 

 
    

 
   

 
   

 



EXECUTIVE SESSION MINUTES  

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT  

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

 
 

 

Date: February 16, 2016  

Time: 8:07 p.m. 

Location:  Library Board Meeting Room  

 

Members Present: Kathy Beaderstadt, Margaret Carey, Delphine Grala, Monica Leccese, and Bradley 

Schubert  

  

Members Absent: Charles Reilly and Jill Stone 

 

During Executive Session, the Board discussed the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, 

performance or dismissal of specific employees of the public body in compliance with the Open 

Meetings Act 5 ILCS 120/2 section 2(c)(1) and review and release of the January 19, 2016 executive 

session minutes.  

 

No action was taken during Executive Session. 

 

 

      Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Monica Leccese, Secretary  

 

 

 
Text for Motion Sheet 

 

1. Roll Call 

 

 

DATE:  February 16, 2016 

Called to Order: 8:07 p.m. 

Kathy 

Beaderstadt 

Margaret 

Carey 

Delphine 

Grala 

Monica 

Leccese 

Charles 

Reilly 

Bradley 

Schubert 

Jill 

Stone 

1.  Roll call P P P P NP P NP 

 
A=Abstain, M=Motion, N=No, NP=Not Present, P=Present, S=Second, Y=Yes 



EXECUTIVE SESSION MINUTES  

MCHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT  

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

 
 

 

Date: March 15, 2016  

Time: 7:17 p.m. 

Location:  Library Board Meeting Room  

 

Members Present: Kathy Beaderstadt, Margaret Carey, Delphine Grala, Monica Leccese, Charles Reilly, 

Bradley Schubert and Jill Stone 

  

Members Absent: None 

 

During Executive Session, the Board discussed the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, 

performance or dismissal of specific employees of the public body in compliance with the Open 

Meetings Act 5 ILCS 120/2 section 2(c)(1) and review and release of the February 16, 2016 executive 

session minutes.  

 

No action was taken during Executive Session. 

 

 

      Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Monica Leccese, Secretary  

 

 

 
Text for Motion Sheet 

 

1. Roll Call 

 

 

DATE:  March 15, 2016 

Called to Order: 7:17 p.m. 

Kathy 

Beaderstadt 

Margaret 

Carey 

Delphine 

Grala 

Monica 

Leccese 

Charles 

Reilly 

Bradley 

Schubert 

Jill 

Stone 

1.  Roll call P P P P P P P 

 
A=Abstain, M=Motion, N=No, NP=Not Present, P=Present, S=Second, Y=Yes 



 

 

 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 

COUNTY OF McHENRY ) 

 

THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

OF THE McHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 

McHENRY, ILLINOIS 

 

ORDINANCE No. 2016/2017 - 3 

 

 

COMBINED ANNUAL BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE 

FOR THE McHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2016 

AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2017 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Illinois Municipal Budget Law, Illinois Revised Statutes, Chapter 85, 

Section 801, et. seq., as amended, requires all Illinois Municipal Corporations as broadly defined 

therein, to adopt a combined Annual Budget and Appropriation Ordinance, specifying the objects 

and purposes of expenditures; and the Illinois Public Library District Act, 75 ILCS 16/30-85, 

provides procedures for the passage of a Budget and Appropriation Ordinance and a Tax Levy 

Ordinance; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to the above and other appropriate statutes, a Budget and 

Appropriation Ordinance has been prepared in tentative form at the designation of this Board, and 

has been made available for public inspection at least thirty (30) days prior to final action thereon, 

and a public hearing on said Budget and Appropriation Ordinance has been held prior to final action 

hereon, and notice of said hearing to be published on/before August 19, 2016, being more than 30 

days prior to said hearing, in a newspaper published within the district. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Library Trustees of 

the McHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT, McHenry, McHenry County, Illinois, as follows: 

 

 Section One:  The following budget containing a statement of cash on hand at the 

beginning of the fiscal year, an estimate of all cash receipts of said Library District to be received 

during such fiscal year from all sources, the estimated expenditures contemplated for such fiscal 

year and a statement of the estimated cash on hand at the end of such fiscal year be, and the same is 

hereby adopted as the Budget for said Library District for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2016 and 

ending June 30, 2017, and the same sum are hereby appropriated as necessary to defray the said 

expenses and liabilities of this Public Library District, for the objects and purposes and in the 

estimated amounts as indicated, for said fiscal year: 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

I. GENERAL FUND 

 

A. ESTIMATED RECEIPTS:       APPROPRIATION    BUDGET 

1.  Est. Cash on hand 7/11/16                                                 $ 1,565,129.00    

  2.  Property tax revenues              $ 3,180,652.28 $ 3,180,652.28 

             3.  Corporate Replacement Taxes  $               0.00 $               0.00 

   4.  General Fund Interest   $        7,000.00 $        5,000.00   

   5.  Dividends     $        1,000.00 $           500.00 

   6.  Non-Resident Fees/Enhanced Fees $        1,000.00 $        1,000.00 

   7.  Fines and Fees    $      55,000.00 $      55,000.00 

   8.  Collection Agency Fees   $        1,000.00 $        1,000.00 

   9.  Photocopier/Fax Income   $      18,000.00 $      17,000.00 

 10.  Annexation Impact Fees    $        2,000.00 $        1,000.00 

 11.  Staff COBRA Payments   $      15,000.00 $      17,000.00 

 12.  Program Fees/Misc. Fees   $        6,000.00 $        4,200.00 

 13.  Meeting Room Fees   $        2,500.00 $        1,000.00 

 14.  Misc. Sales & Fees   $      25,000.00 $      25,000.00 

 15.  Lost & Damaged Materials  $        6,000.00 $        6,000.00 

16.  Over/Short    $           500.00 $               0.00 

  

 TOTAL GENERAL REVENUE  $ 3,320,652.28 $ 4,885,781.28 

 

 

 



B. APPROPRIATIONS FOR ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES 

  
1.  MATERIALS & SUPPLIES  APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 
a.   Adult Books    $     90,000.00   $    85,000.00 

b.   Youth Books    $     64,000.00   $    59,000.00 

c.   Professional Resources   $       3,000.00   $      3,500.00 

d.   Administrative Resources   $       7,000.00   $      6,400.00 

e.   Magazines/Newspapers   $     20,000.00   $    15,000.00 

f.    Adult AV Materials   $     65,000.00   $    62,000.00 

g.   Youth AV Materials   $     19,000.00   $    16,000.00 

h.   Video Games    $     20,000.00   $    15,000.00 

i.    eBook & eMagazine Services  $     60,000.00   $    55,500.00 

j.    Electronic Resources   $     90,000.00   $    80,000.00 

k.   Bank Service Charges   $          500.00   $         500.00   

l.    Library Supplies    $     15,000.00   $    10,000.00 

m.  Tech. Services Supplies   $     58,000.00   $    57,200.00 

n.   Bindery     $          150.00   $         150.00 

o.   Adult Programs/Supplies   $     22,000.00   $    22,000.00 

p.   Circulation Supplies   $     12,000.00   $    12,000.00 

q.   Summer Reading Club   $       7,000.00   $      7,000.00 

r.    Youth Programs/Supplies   $     21,500.00   $    21,500.00 

 

2.  CONTRACTED SERVICES  APPROPRIATION  BUDGET  
a.   Collection Agency    $       1,500.00   $      1,500.00 

b.   Computer, Office equipment   $     60,000.00   $    59,000.00 

 & copier repairs/contracts      

c.   Misc. Contracted Services   $       5,000.00   $       2000.00 

d.    Finance/Late Fee Charges  $          500.00   $         500.00  

 

3. CATALOG & NETWORK  APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 
a.   CCS & SIRSI Services   $     80,000.00   $     80,000.00 

b.   Network Expenses   $     30,000.00   $     25,000.00 

c.   OCLC Services    $     12,000.00   $       8,000.00 

 

4.  PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 
a.   Accounting, Payroll and Audit Services $     34,000.00   $    28,000.00 

b.   Legal Services    $       2,000.00   $      1,500.00 

c.   Automation & Misc. Consultants  $     14,000.00   $    14,000.00 

d.   In-service Honorariums   $       1,000.00   $      1,000.00 

  

 5.  PRINTING, PUBLICATIONS   

 & POSTAGE    APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 
a.   Printing Services    $     40,000.00   $     36,000.00 

b.   Public Notices & Ads   $       4,000.00   $       3,000.00 

c.   Postage     $     20,000.00   $     18,000.00  

d.   Public Relations/Promotions  $     10,000.00   $     10,000.00  

 

6.  UTILITIES    APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 



a.   Electricity     $     30,000.00   $     25,000.00 

b.   Gas     $       4,000.00   $       2,500.00 

c.   Telephone     $     13,500.00              $     13,500.00 

d.   T-1 & Other Telecom.   $     10,000.00   $       7,000.00 

e.   Water & Sewer    $       7,000.00   $       3,500.00 

 

 7.  MISCELLANEOUS OPERATING  

 EXPENSES    APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 
a.   Janitorial Equipment, Supplies & Tools $              0.00   $              0.00 

b.   Building & Auto Insurance  $     40,000.00   $     32,000.00 

c.   Bonding & Officers’ Liability  $       7,000.00   $       5,500.00 

d.   Building & Equipment Outsource $     55,000.00   $     54,000.00 

e.   Hospitality     $     18,000.00   $     13,000.00 

f.    Interlibrary Loan Fees & Losses  $       1,500.00   $          700.00 

g.   Miscellaneous    $       4,000.00   $       4,000.00 

 

8.  PERSONNEL EXPENSES  APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 
a.   Salaries     $1,870,000.00   $1,810,000.00 

b.   FICA     $   160,000.00   $   145,000.00  

c.   IMRF     $   185,000.00   $   180,000.00 

d.   Health/Life Insurance   $   270,000.00   $   260,000.00 

e.   Tuition Reimbursement   $     12,000.00   $       9,000.00 

f.   Memberships & Dues   $       8,500.00   $       8,000.00 

g.   Meetings & Travel   $     15,000.00   $     14,000.00  

  

 9.  CAPITAL EXPENSES   APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 
a.   Building  & Equipment Supplies   $              0.00   $              0.00 

b.   Library Furnishings   $     30,000.00   $     35,000.00 

c.   Library Equipment   $     70,000.00   $     70,000.00 

d.   Small Equip. under $250   $     10,000.00   $     10,000.00 

e.   Additional Capital Projects  $   320,000.00   $   320,000.00 

                

10.  DEBT SERVICE  

a.   Recovery Zone Bond Principal  $ --------   $   ------- 

b.   Recovery Zone Bond Interest  $ --------   $   ------- 

c.   Debt Service    $ --------   $   ------- 

 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENSES $4,050,650.00   $ 4,050,650.00 

 

11.  Transfer to Reserve Fund  $ --------          $    800,000.00 

 

      APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 

TOTAL GEN. FUND REVENUES  $4,885,781.28   $3,314,352.28 

TOTAL GEN. FUND EXPENSES  $4,028,650.00           $4,636,950.00   



 

II. GRANT and GIFT FUND 

 

 

A. ESTIMATED REVENUES  APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 

 1.    Est. Cash on Hand 7/1/16 $   483,000.00   $   482,237.00 

 2     Per Capita Grant cash on hand $     ----   $      ---- 

 3.    Grant/Gift Fund Interest  $     5,000.00   $       2,500.00 

 4.    General Fund Gifts  $    40,000.00   $     20,000.00 

 5.    Per Capita Grant   $    87,000.00   $     84,893.43 

 6.    Misc. Grants   $    50,000.00   $     50,000.00 

  

 TOT. GRANT/GIFT REVENUES $   665,000.00   $   639,630.43   

 

 

B. ESTIMATED EXPENSES  APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 
 1.   Operating Fund Gifts  $   500,000.00   $   448,381.10 

 2.   FY2015/16 Per Capita Grant $     52,528.75   $     32,393.43 

 3.   Additional Fund Expenses $              0.00   $              0.00  

 5.   Misc. Grants   $     25,000.00   $     25,000.00  

  

 

 TOT. GRANT/GIFT EXPENSES $   577,528.75     $   505,774.53  

 

11. Transfer to Reserve Fund  $ --------          $              0.00 

 

 TOT. GRANT/GIFT REVENUES $   665,000.00   $    639,630.43 

 TOT. GRANT/GIFT EXPENSES $   577,528.75   $    505,774.53 
  Subtotal cash on hand $     87,471.25   $    133,855.90  

   

 



 

III.  SPECIAL RESERVE FUND 
 

 

A. ESTIMATED RECEIPTS  APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 

 1.  Est. Cash on hand 7/1/15  $ 1,721,585.00  $1,721,585.00 

 2.  Developer Fees   $      50,000.00  $     25,000.00 

 3   Reserve Fund Interest  $      50,000.00  $       3,000.00  

 5.  Reserve Fund Gifts                         $     50,000.00  $     25,000.00 

 6.  Bond & Debt Sale              $               0.00                        $              0.00 

 7.  Transfers from Other Funds $       -----------   $   800,000.00 

 8.  Misc. Income SR   $        2,000.00  $       2,000.00            

 

TOTAL REVENUES              $ 1, 871,585.00             $2,576,585.00 

 

 

B.   ESTIMATED EXPENSES  APPROPRIATION  BUDGET 
 1. Debt service    $                0.00  $               0.00 

 

2. Improvements not related to 

Expansion/renovation  $     200,000.00            $    100,000.00 

3.   Expenditures Pursuant 

       To Statutory Guidelines of the  

              LIBRARY DISTRICT ACT, 

             75 ILCS 16/40-50   $     100,000.00  $      50,000.00 

 

TOTAL EXPENSES    $     300,000.00  $    150,000.00 

 

TOTAL RESERVE FUND REVENUES $ 1, 871,585.00  $ 2,576,585.00 

TOTAL RESERVE FUND EXPENSES $     300,000.00             $    150,000.00 
   

 

 Section Two:  There is hereby appropriated from the taxes to be levied for the fiscal 

year and other sources of revenue: 

 

  I. General Fund   $    4,885,781.28 

 II. Grant/Gift Fund  $       665,000.00 

 III. Special Reserve Fund $    1,871,585.00     

 

TOTAL     $    7,422,366.28 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Section Three:  There is hereby appropriated from the taxes to be levied for the fiscal year 

and other sources of income the sum of: 

 

      $    7,442,366.28 
   

the same to be divided among the several corporate objects and purposes as herein above specified 

for said Library District purposes for the aforesaid fiscal year. 

 

 

 Section Four:  All unexpended balances of proceeds received annually from Public 

Library District taxes not in excess of statutory limits may be transferred to the Special Reserve 

Fund, heretofore established according to plans developed and adopted by this Library Board and 

said unexpended balances shall be accumulated in this fund for the purpose of erecting a new Public 

Library building, purchasing a site for the same, or building an addition thereto, or furnishing 

necessary equipment therefor, or acquiring electronic data storage and retrieval facilities. 

 

 

 Section Five:  Except as otherwise provided by law, no further appropriations shall 

be made at any time within such fiscal year, provided that this Library Board may from time to time 

make transfers between the various items in any fund not affecting the total amount appropriated, or 

appropriations in excess of those authorized by the Budget in order to meet an immediate and 

unforeseen emergency by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Trustees present and voting, as provided by 

75 ILCS 16/30-90 et. seq., and this Library Board may amend this Budget and Appropriation 

Ordinance from time to time by the same procedure as prescribed by Statute for the original 

adoption of a Budget and Appropriation Ordinance; provided, that nothing in this Section shall be 

construed to permit transfer between Funds required by law to be kept separate.  Any remaining 

balances after the close of this fiscal year up to twenty percent (20%) of the appropriation shall be 

available until August 30th for the authorization of payment of obligations incurred prior to the 

close of the fiscal year, and until September 30th, for the payment of such obligations, and any 

remaining balances shall be available for the transfer to special reserve to be accumulated, as 

provided by 75 ILCS 16/40-50. 

 

 

 Section Six:  A copy of this Ordinance in tentative form has been made available 

for public inspection at the Public Library for thirty (30) days and by publishing in a newspaper 

published within this Public Library District in substantially the following form: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 

COUNTY OF McHENRY ) 

 

THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

OF THE McHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 

McHENRY COUNTY, McHENRY, ILLINOIS 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

 

 

 PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Tentative Budget and Appropriation 

Ordinance for the McHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT, McHENRY COUNTY, 

McHENRY, ILLINOIS, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2016, and ending June 30, 2017, is on 

file and conveniently available for public inspection at the McHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY 

DISTRICT, 809 North Front Street, McHenry, Illinois and with the Secretary of the District, 

Monica Leccese, and the Library's Executive Director, James C. Scholtz, at 809 North Front Street, 

McHenry, Illinois, and will so remain on file until the final action thereon by the Board of Library 

Trustees. 

 

 FURTHER NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing on said Budget and 

Appropriation Ordinance will be held at 7:00 p.m., Tuesday, September 20, 2016 at the McHENRY 

PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT BUILDING, 809 North Front Street, McHenry, Illinois, and that 

final action will be taken thereon by the Board of Library Trustees to be held immediately after said 

hearing at the time and place aforesaid. 

 

 

 Published by direction of the Board of Library Trustees of the McHENRY PUBLIC 

LIBRARY DISTRICT, McHENRY COUNTY, McHENRY, ILLINOIS. 

 

 DATED this 20th day of September 2016 

 

THE McHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT, 

McHENRY COUNTY, McHENRY, ILLINOIS 

 

  BY:___________________________________ 

   Monica Leccese, Secretary  

   Board of Library Trustees 

   McHenry Public Library District 

 

Publish/Post: August 15-23, 2016  



 

 Section Seven:  This Ordinance is passed pursuant to statutory authority and the 

Illinois Public Library District Act, 75 ILCS 16/30-55, et. seq, 75 ILCS 16/30-85 et. seq.; and 75 

ILCS 16/40-50 et. seq.; and the Illinois Revenue Code, 35 ILCS 205/157 et. seq., and other statutes 

hereunto appertaining. 

 

 

 Section Eight:  This Library Board hereby certifies that all applicable provisions of 

35 ILCS 215/1 as amended, ("The Illinois Truth-in-Taxation Statute") have been complied with. 

 

 

 Section Nine:  Pursuant to 35 ILCS 200/18-165 this Library Board hereby 

determines that no surplus of funds is available for any debt, obligation, liability, operation, fund or 

account for any purpose, and accordingly the abatement and reduction of provisions of the Personal 

Property Tax Replacement Fund Act are not applicable thereto. 

 

 

 Section Ten:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage, approval, and publication, according to law, and any resolutions or ordinance in conflict 

therewith are hereby repealed; and should any part of this Ordinance be adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional, such adjudication shall affect only that part of this Act specifically covered 

thereby, and shall not affect any other provisions or part of this Act, but shall be severable 

therefrom. 

 

 



 

 PASSED by the Board of Library Trustees of the McHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY 

DISTRICT, McHENRY COUNTY, McHENRY, ILLINOIS this 20th day of September 2016,   

by a vote of: 

 

 

AYES:   

 

NAYS:   

 

ABSENT:   

 

PRESENT:   

 

ABSTAINING:   

 

 

 

    Approved:______________________________ 

     Kathy Beaderstadt, President 

     Board of Library Trustees 

     McHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 

     McHenry County, McHenry, Illinois 

 

 

 

 

 

Attest:______________________________ 

 Monica Leccese, Secretary  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

STATE OF ILLINOIS                    ) 

COUNTY OF McHENRY              ) 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

 

I, MONICA LECCESE DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the attached ORDINANCE NO. 2016-

2017-3, COMBINED ANNUAL BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE FOR THE 

McHENRY PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 

1, 2016 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2017, is a true and correct copy of said Ordinance which was 

presented in a public hearing on September 20, 2016 and passed, and recorded by said 

Library Board at their additional Library Board meeting on September 20th, 2016. 

 

 

 

 

     _____________________________ 

     Monica Leccese, Secretary  

     McHenry Public Library District 

     Board of Library Trustees 

 

 

 

Subscribed and sworn before me this 20th day of September 2016. 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Reuben William Edminster, Notary Public 

        (seal) 

 

My commission expires: ________ 

 



FINAL BUDGET FY 2016/17 9/20/2016

FY 2016-2017 OPERATING BUDGET
FY2015-16 FY2016-17 FY2016-17 FY2016-17

GENERAL FUND REVENUES operating budget Appropriation Levy

estimated CASH ON HAND (7/1/2016) 1,565,129.00$             $1,565,129.00

6010-100 PROPERTY TAXES 3,180,645.36$             3,180,652.28$      $3,180,652.28 $3,180,652.28

6020-100 CORPORATE REPLACEMENT TAX -$                            -$                     $0.00

6030-100 GENERAL FUND INTEREST 5,000.00$                    5,000.00$             $7,000.00

6035-100 DIVIDENDS 500.00$                       500.00$               $1,000.00

6040-100 NONRESIDENT & ENHANCED FEE CARDS 3,500.00$                    1,000.00$             $1,000.00

6050-100 FINES AND FEES 60,000.00$                  55,000.00$           $55,000.00

6055-100 COLLECTION AGENCY FEES 1,000.00$                    1,000.00$             $1,000.00

6060-100 PHOTOCOPIER & FAX INCOME 17,000.00$                  17,000.00$           $18,000.00

6090-100 ANNEXATION IMPACT FEES 3,000.00$                    1,000.00$             $2,000.00

6105-100 STAFF COBRA/INSURANCE PAYMENTS 17,000.00$                  17,000.00$           $15,000.00

6110-100 PROGRAM FEES /MISC. FEES 4,200.00$                    4,200.00$             $6,000.00

6120-100 MEETING ROOM FEES 1,000.00$                    1,000.00$             $2,500.00

6130-100 MISC. sales (disks, T-shirts) 23,000.00$                  25,000.00$           $25,000.00

6150-100 LOST & DAMAGED MATERIALS 6,000.00$                    6,000.00$             $6,000.00

6200-100 OVER/SHORT -$                            -$                     $500.00

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES 4,886,974.36$             3,314,352.28$      4,885,781.28$      3,180,652.28$      

1 of 8



GENERAL FUND EXPENSES

FY2015-16 FY2016-17 FY2016-17 FY2016-17

MATERIALS and SUPPLIES operating budget Appropriation Levy

8010-100 ADULT BOOKS 85,000.00$                  85,000.00$           $90,000.00 $60,000.00

8020-100 YOUTH BOOKS 51,000.00$                  59,000.00$           $64,000.00 $35,000.00

8025-100 PROFESSIONAL RESOURCES 1,500.00$                    3,500.00$             $3,000.00 $1,000.00

8028-100 ADMINISTRATIVE RESOURCES 4,000.00$                    6,400.00$             $7,000.00 $1,000.00

8030-100 MAGAZINES and NEWSPAPERS 15,000.00$                  15,000.00$           $20,000.00 $10,000.00

8050-100 ADULT AV MATERIALS 62,000.00$                  62,000.00$           $65,000.00 $35,000.00

8060-100 YOUTH AV MATERIALS 21,000.00$                  16,000.00$           $19,000.00 $35,000.00

8080-100 VIDEO GAMES 15,000.00$                  15,000.00$           $20,000.00 $5,000.00

8090-100 eBOOK & eMAGAZINE SERVICES 39,000.00$                  55,500.00$           $60,000.00 $14,500.00

8095-100 ELECTRONIC RESOURCES 90,000.00$                  80,000.00$           $90,000.00 $30,000.00

8110-100 BANK SERVICE CHARGES 500.00$                       500.00$               $500.00 $500.00

8120-100 LIBRARY SUPPLIES 10,000.00$                  10,000.00$           $15,000.00 $10,000.00

8130-100 TECH SERVICES SUPPLIES 35,000.00$                  57,200.00$           $58,000.00 $25,000.00

8135-100 BINDERY 150.00$                       150.00$               $150.00 $1,000.00

8140-100 ADULT PROGRAMS & SUPPLIES 17,000.00$                  22,000.00$           $22,000.00 $15,750.00

8145-100 CIRCULATION SUPPLIES 6,000.00$                    12,000.00$           $12,000.00 $6,000.00

8147-100 SUMMER READING CLUB 7,000.00$                    7,000.00$             $7,000.00 $2,000.00

8150-100 YOUTH PROGRAMS & SUPPLIES 19,000.00$                  21,500.00$           $21,500.00 $15,000.00

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 478,150.00$                527,750.00$         574,150.00$         301,750.00$         

FY2015-16 FY2016-17 FY2016-17 FY2016-17

CONTRACTED SERVICES operating budget Appropriation Levy

8215-100 COLLECTION AGENCY 1,500.00$                    1,500.00$             $1,500.00 $0.00

8245-100 Computer/OFC EQP/Copier Repairs & Contracts 47,500.00$                  59,000.00$           $60,000.00 $20,000.00

8250-100 VEHICLE EXPENSES -$                            -$                     $0.00 $0.00

8260-100 MISC. CONTRACTED SERVICES 3,000.00$                    2,000.00$             $5,000.00 $1,000.00

8270-100 FINANCE/LATE FEE CHARGES 500.00$                       500.00$               $500.00 $500.00

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 52,500.00$                  63,000.00$           67,000.00$           21,500.00$           

FY2015-16

CATALOG and NETWORK EXPENSES operating budget Appropriation Levy

8310-100 CCS & SIRSI EXPENSES 73,000.00$                  80,000.00$           $80,000.00 $75,000.00

8320-100 NETWORK EXPENSES 30,000.00$                  25,000.00$           $30,000.00 $35,000.00

8330-100 OCLC SERVICES (cataloging) 8,000.00$                    8,000.00$             $12,000.00 $10,000.00

TOTAL CATALOG and NETWORK EXPENSES 111,000.00$                113,000.00$         122,000.00$         120,000.00$         2 of 8



FY2015-16 FY2016-17 FY2016-17 FY2016-17

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES operating budget Appropriation Levy

8410-100 ACCOUNTING, PAYROLL & AUDIT SERVICES 25,000.00$                  28,000.00$           $34,000.00 $25,000.00

8420-100 LEGAL SERVICES 8,000.00$                    1,500.00$             $2,000.00 $5,000.00

8430-100 AUTOMATION & MISC. CONSULTANTS 15,000.00$                  14,000.00$           $14,000.00 $15,000.00

8440-100 IN SERVICE HONORARIUMS 1,000.00$                    1,000.00$             $1,000.00 $0.00

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 49,000.00$                  44,500.00$           51,000.00$           45,000.00$           

 FY2014-15 FY2016-17 FY2016-17 FY2016-17

PRINTING, PUBLICATIONS & POSTAGE operating budget Appropriation Levy

8510-100 PRINTING SERVICES 32,000.00$                  36,000.00$           $40,000.00 $35,000.00

8530-100 PUBLIC NOTICES & ADS (legal…not display ads) 3,000.00$                    3,000.00$             $4,000.00 $5,000.00

8540-100 POSTAGE 14,000.00$                  18,000.00$           $20,000.00 $15,000.00

8550-100 PUBLIC RELATIONS/PROMOTIONS 8,000.00$                    10,000.00$           $10,000.00 $10,000.00

TOTAL PRINTING, PUB. & POSTAGE 57,000.00$                  67,000.00$           74,000.00$           65,000.00$           

FY2015-16 FY2016-17 FY2016-17 FY2016-17

UTILITIES operating budget Appropriation Levy

8610-100 ELECTRIC 28,500.00$                  25,000.00$           $30,000.00 $55,000.00

8620-100 GAS 10,000.00$                  2,500.00$             $4,000.00 $2,500.00

8630-100 TELEPHONE 4,000.00$                    13,500.00$           $13,500.00 $9,500.00

8635-100 T-1 and OTHER TELECOMMUNICATIONS 10,000.00$                  7,000.00$             $10,000.00 $15,000.00

8640-100 WATER & SEWER 3,500.00$                    3,500.00$             $7,000.00 $4,000.00

TOTAL UTILITIES 56,000.00$                  51,500.00$           64,500.00$           86,000.00$           

3 of 8



FY2015-16 FY2016-17 FY2016-17 FY2016-17

MISCELLANEOUS OPERATING EXPENSES operating budget Appropriation Levy

8710-100 JANITORIAL EQUIP, SUPPLIES & TOOLS -$                            -$                     $0.00 $0.00

8720-100 BUILDING & AUTO INSURANCE 24,500.00$                  32,000.00$           $40,000.00 $30,000.00

8730-100 BONDING &  OFFICERS LIABILITY 4,000.00$                    5,500.00$             $7,000.00 $12,000.00

8740-100 BUILDING & GROUNDS 50,000.00$                  54,000.00$           $55,000.00 $75,000.00

8760-100 HOSPITALITY(incl. vending machine) 5,500.00$                    13,000.00$           $18,000.00 $7,000.00

8770-100 INTERLIBRARY LOAN FEES & LOSSES 700.00$                       700.00$               $1,500.00 $0.00

8795-100 MISCELLANEOUS 4,000.00$                    4,000.00$             $4,000.00 $5,000.00

TOT. MISCEL. OPERATING EXPENSES 88,700.00$                  109,200.00$         125,500.00$         129,000.00$         

FY2015-16 FY2016-17 FY2016-17 FY2016-17

PERSONNEL EXPENSES operating budget Appropriation Levy

8910-100 SALARIES 1,730,000.00$             1,810,000.00$      $1,870,000.00 $1,819,402.28

8920-100 FICA 163,000.00$                145,000.00$         $160,000.00 $145,000.00

8930-100 IMRF 186,000.00$                180,000.00$         $185,000.00 $180,000.00

8940-100 HEALTH & LIFE INSURANCE 240,000.00$                260,000.00$         $270,000.00 $257,500.00

8950-100 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 14,000.00$                  9,000.00$             $12,000.00 $0.00

8960-100 MEMBERSHIPS & DUES 6,500.00$                    8,000.00$             $8,500.00 $0.00

8970-100 MEETINGS & TRAVEL 12,000.00$                  14,000.00$           $15,000.00 $2,000.00

TOTAL PERSONNEL EXPENSES 2,351,500.00$             2,426,000.00$      2,520,500.00$      2,403,902.28$      

FY2015-16 FY2016-17 FY2016-17 FY2016-17

CAPITAL EXPENSES operating budget Appropriation Levy

9040-100 BUILDING & EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES (In house) -$                            -$                     $0.00 $0.00

9060-100 LIBRARY FURNISHINGS 15,000.00$                  35,000.00$           $30,000.00 $5,000.00

9070-100 LIBRARY EQUIPMENT 25,000.00$                  70,000.00$           $70,000.00 $2,500.00

9080-100 SMALL EQUIPMENT UNDER $250 2,000.00$                    10,000.00$           $10,000.00 $1,000.00

9090-100 ADTL. CAPITAL PROJECTS 550,000.00$                320,000.00$         $320,000.00 $0.00

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 592,000.00$                435,000.00$         430,000.00$         8,500.00$             

4 of 8



FY2015-16 FY2016-17 FY2016-17 FY2016-17

operating budget Appropriation Levy

9100-100 TRANSFER TO RESERVE FUND 550,000.00$                800,000.00$         $0.00 $0.00

TOTAL TRANSFER TO RESERVE FUND 550,000.00$                800,000.00$         $0.00 $0.00

FY2015-16 FY2016-17 FY2016-17 FY2016-17

DEBT SERVICE operating budget Appropriation Levy

9115-100 RECOVERY ZONE BOND PRINCIPAL -$                            -$                     $0.00 $0.00

9120-100 RECOVERY ZONE BOND INTEREST -$                            -$                     $0.00 $0.00

9095-100 DEBT SERVICE - GF -$                            -$                     $0.00 $0.00

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE -$                            -$                     $0.00

TOTAL ESTIMATED EXPENSES 4,385,850.00$             4,636,950.00$      4,028,650.00$      3,180,652.28$      

FY2015-16 FY2016-17 FY2016-17 FY2016-17

operating budget Appropriation Levy

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES 4,886,974.36$             3,314,352.28$      4,885,781.28$      3,180,652.28$      

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENSES 4,385,850.00$             4,636,950.00$      4,028,650.00$      3,180,652.28$      

estimated year end fund balance 501,124.36$                (1,322,597.72)$    

GRANT & GIFT FUND

FY2015-16 FY2016-17 FY2016-17 FY2016-17

GRANT & GIFT FUND REVENUES operating budget Appropriation Levy

est. CASH ON HAND7/1/2016 482,237.00$                482,237.00$         $483,000.00

6030-300 GRANT /GIFT FUND INTEREST 2,500.00$                    2,500.00$             $5,000.00

6070-300 GENERAL FUND GIFTS 20,000.00$                  20,000.00$           $40,000.00

6170-300 PER CAPITA GRANT-any revenues received FY 2015-16 52,528.75$                  84,893.43$           $87,000.00

6210-300 MISC. GRANTS 50,000.00$                  50,000.00$           $50,000.00

TOTAL GRANT & GIFT REVENUES 607,265.75$                639,630.43$         665,000.00$         

5 of 8



FY2015-16 FY2016-17 FY 2015-16 FY 2015-16

GRANT & GIFT FUND EXPENSES operating budget Appropriation Levy

8040-300 OPERATING FUND GIFTS 432,521.30$                448,381.10$         $500,000.00 $0.00

8800-300 2016-17 per capita grant 52,528.75$                  32,393.43$           $52,528.75 $0.00

8800-311 Adult Materials

8800-312 Adult Books—Nonfiction

8800-313 Adult Books—Reference

8800-317 Adult Audio

8800-318 Adult Video

8800-321 Youth Materials

8800-322 Youth Books—Nonfiction

8800-323 Youth Books—Reference

8800-324 Youth Books—Picture

8800-325 Youth Books—Reader

8800-326 Youth Audio

8800-327 Youth Video

8800-331 Staff Software

8800-332 Public Software

8800-333 Computer Equipment

8800-341 Other Equipment

8800-342 Additional Expenses (personnel) 

9200-300 ADDITIONAL EXPENSES $0.00 $0.00

9030-300 MISC. GRANTS 50,000.00$                  25,000.00$           $25,000.00 $0.00

TOTAL GRANT FUND EXPENSES 535,050.05$                505,774.53$         577,528.75$         -$                         

9100-300 TRANSFER TO RESERVE FUND -$                     -$                         -$                         

TOTAL GRANT FUND REVENUES 607,265.75$                639,630.43$         665,000.00$         -$                         

TOTAL GRANT FUND EXPENSES 535,050.05$                505,774.53$         577,528.75$         -$                         

     est. year end fund balance 72,215.70$                  133,855.90$         87,471.25$           

6 of 8



SPECIAL RESERVE FUND

 FY2015-16 FY2016-17 FY2016-17 FY2016-17

 SPECIAL RESERVE FUND REVENUES operating budget Appropriation Levy

 Est. Cash on Hand (7/1/2016) 363,809.00$                1,721,585.00$      $1,721,585.00

6020-200 DEVELOPER FEES 3,000.00$                    25,000.00$           $50,000.00

6030-200 RESERVE FUND INTEREST 2,500.00$                    3,000.00$             $50,000.00

6070-200 RESERVE FUND GIFTS 50,000.00$                  25,000.00$           $50,000.00

6080-200 BOND & DEBT CERTIFICATE SALE -$                            -$                     $0.00

6090-200 TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS (9100-100) 550,000.00$                800,000.00$         $0.00

6130-200 MISC. INCOME SR 2,000.00$                    2,000.00$             $2,000.00

TOTAL RESERVE FUND REVENUES 971,309.00$                2,576,585.00$      1,871,585.00$      

 FY2015-16 FY2016-17 FY2016-17 FY2016-17

 RESERVE FUND EXPENSES operating budget Appropriation Levy

9040-200 Debt Service -$                            -$                     $0.00 $0.00

  

9050-200 Improv.& equip. not directly related to building plan 100,000.00$         $200,000.00 $0.00

misc. capital improvements

 

9050-200 expenditures pursuant to statutory 400,000.00$                50,000.00$           $100,000.00 $0.00

guidelines of the Lib. Dist. Act

75 ILCS 16/40-50 (Special reserve fund)

Total Reserve Fund Expenses 400,000.00$                150,000.00$         300,000.00$         

7 of 8



RESERVE FUND REVENUES 971,309.00$                2,576,585.00$      1,871,585.00$      

RESERVE FUND EXPENSES 400,000.00$                150,000.00$         300,000.00$         

est. year end fund balance 571,309.00$                2,426,585.00$      

TOTAL REVENUES

General Fund 4,886,974.36$             3,314,352.28$      $4,885,781.28

Grant/Gift Fund 607,265.75$                639,630.43$         $665,000.00

Special Reserve Fund 971,309.00$                2,576,585.00$      $1,871,585.00

GRAND TOTAL ESTIMATED REVENUES 6,465,549.11$             6,530,567.71$      $7,422,366.28 $0.00

FY2015-16 FY2016-17 FY2016-17 FY2016-17

TOTAL EXPENSES operating budget Appropriation Levy

General Fund 4,385,850.00$             4,636,950.00$      $4,028,650.00 $3,180,652.28

Grant/Gift Fund 535,050.05$                505,774.53$         $577,528.75 $0.00

Special Reserve Fund 400,000.00$                150,000.00$         $300,000.00 $0.00

GRAND TOTAL ESTIMATED EXPENSES 5,320,900.05$             5,292,724.53$      4,906,178.75$      3,180,652.28$      

GRAND TOTAL OF ALL FUND REVENUES 6,465,549.11$             6,530,567.71$      7,422,366.28$      

GRAND TOTAL OF ALL FUND EXPENSES 5,320,900.05$             5,292,724.53$      4,906,178.75$      

estimated year end combined fund balance 1,144,649.06$             1,237,843.18$      2,516,187.53$      

8 of 8






































